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STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Group 1s the supply of clean water and treatment and disposal of waste water
The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company

The principal subsidiary of the Company 1s Wessex Water Services Ltd (WWS5L), a regulated company licenced for
the supply of clean water and treatment and disposal of waste water WWSL operates in a region of 10,000 square
kilometres in the South West of England In 2017 there was a change in the regulated activity of WWSL with the
retail element af non-household companies being open to competition To enter into this competitive market
Wessex Water Limited (WWL) ¢created with Bristol Water Holdings Ltd a new company, Water 2 Business Ltd

WWL owns 100% of the share capital of Wessex Water Enterprises Ltd, which undertakes unregulated water and waste
water activities i the WWS5L region

WWL, also owns SC Technology GmbH, another 100% subsidiary company which s registered in Switzerland, which
installs and operates sludge drying equipment with the principal contracts being in the Netherlands

WWL has an addiional subsidiary, Turnbull Infrastructure & Utilities Ltd which undertakes end-to-end services for civil,
mechanical and electrical engineering projects

All subsidiary companies are listed in note 14
Group Financia! performance

Profit after tax improved by £28 7m from a loss of £0 4m last year to a profit of £28 3m in the current year, due to
the factors discussed below

Revenues Increased by £139 2m or 16 1% to £1 Obn This mamly resulted from growth in the regulated revenues of
Water 2 Business driven by national contracts won outside of the Wessex region combined with tanff price
increases in WWsL

Total operating ¢osts increased by £123 4m from £704 Om to £827 4m In WWSL, new gbligations, supporting
improvements to leakage and poliutions performance and other inflationary pressures combined with the
additional wholesale costs associated with the new Water 2 Business contracts to increase the overali cost base

Net finance costs, including other finance charges, reduced by £28 Om from £172 6m to £144 6m Therewas a
reduction in the Jevel of interest from index-linked debt refiecting inflation levels in the year offset by higher
interest rates within the UK The overall cost of debt reduced from 6 8% to 5 4%

There was a £19,3m increase 1n taxation from a credit last year of £7 8m to a charge this year of £11 5m

Net debt (see page 94 for breakdown), increased by £308 9m from £3,149 7m to £3,458 6m The cash inflow from
operating activities of £279 1m was reduced by outflows from net mvestment activities (before acquisitions of
medium term fixed deposits) of £356 9m, interest payments of £125 3m, dividend payments of £62 6m, bond
indexation of £42 Om and other outflows of £2 2m

Dividends declared in the year amounted to £52 8m compared to £78 Om last year
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Under IAS 19 the pension scheme surplus of £5 9m at the start of the year has increased to a surplus of £11 7m at
30 June 2025, the reduction in asset values of £31 8m being lower than the £37 6m reduction in obligations

Group operating profit as a percentage of revenue was 18 4% (2024 19 0%), the reduction was due to higher
operating costs outpacing the improvement in tanff prices Interast cover (defined as net finanong expense as a
proportion of operating profit) improved from 1 0 times last year to 1 3 imes in the current year Management
recognises interest cover as a good indicator of financial stability and a reflection of operating efficiency

The following sections A to D provide an overview of the key subsidiaries within the group

A. WESSEX WATER SERVICES LTD

Wessex Water Services Ltd 1s a regional water and sewerage business serving 2 9 million customers across the
South West of England It1s recognised by its regulators as one of the leading water and sewerage companies in
England and Wales

It 15 committed to playing a role that goes beyond providing an essential public service It aims to support the
communities 1t serves, help tackle the climate, environment and nature emergency, and contribute to the growth
of the UK economy These aims form the core of its long-term commitment to build a sustainable future with the
support of its customers, commuruties, employees and stakeholders across its region

Its long-term plan for delivery of tts purpose 1s set out In its Strategic Direction Statement, published on its website
here The statement sets outts vision and ambittons though to 2050, to give all its stakeholders trust and
confidence that it intends to nse to unprecedented challenges, now and in the future

At its heart are eight outcomes that its customers and stakeho!ders have told it are thewr prionties

safe and reliable water supply

an effective sewerage system
affordable bills

excellent customer experience
sustainable water abstraction

excellent nver and coastal water quality
net zero carbon

increased biodiversity

Its eight outcomes are underpinned by six enablers centred around strong financing and governance, and
empowered people, that it needs to embed in 1ts business over the fong term These are

e Culture, inclusion, and diversity 1t will have an inclusive workforce that reflects the cultures and diversity
of the region it serves

e Individual safety, wellbeing, and engagement its colleagues will be safe at work, proud to work for 1t and
fully engaged in their roles

* Skills, knowledge, and opportunity 1ts colleagues will have all the skills and knowledge they need to
confidently carry out their roles

e  Market-led outcomes 1t will harness the power of markets to drive the most efficient solutions
¢  Resilient financial stewardship it will demonstrate long-term financial stability

* being well managed, open, ethical and transparent it will demaonstrate that it is honest and ethical in the
way 1t conducts its business
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STRATEGIC REPORT [continued)

The performance indicatars that follow show the performance over the regulatory year ended 31 March 2025
Serving people and places

To provide refiable, affordable services for all its customers and communities
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The ambition

In WWSL's Strategic Direction Statement, which sets out its aims for 2050, t is targettng

« zero water supply interruptions of longer than three hours

= 100% water quahty comphance

* halving the impact of sewer flooding

* zero water poverty —no one will spend more than 5% of their disposable income on water
* being a top 10 customer service provider across all compames in the UK

Safe and relioble water supply

Reservoir and aquifer levels are below average after we come out of a prolonged dry spring and summer While it
15 not currently planning to introduce restrictions, safeguarding long-term supply requires us all to play our part by
actively reducing both per capita consumption and leakage from the supply network Its performance on water
supply interruptions in the year was marred by two major incidents which affected a significant number of
customers The Drinking Water Inspectorate awarded it one of the leading scores for the Water quality
compliance nisk index in the industry Performance however fell short of the stretch target set for WWSL The
official number for the Comphance risk index score, and also for the Event nisk index, will be released in the
autumn

An effective sewerage system

The rainfail over the year, which was again significantly above the long-term average, put pressure on Its
wastewater network, particularly during periods of high-intensity downpours Its performance on sewer flooding
across the varous Performance Commitments was disappointing In common with 2023-24, it missed targets and
levels of sewer flooding remained too high 1t s acutely aware of the impact that sewer flooding can have on
customers affected To mitigate sewer flooding, it implemented several schemes that have successfully reduced
flooding n various areas These efforts have helped it manage the impact of heavy rainfall more effectively in
these places

In 2024-25, it carned out several key schemes to afleviate the risk of sewer flooding

e enhanced drainage systems upgraded drainage infrastructure in high-risk areas to improve
capacity and reduce the likelihood of sewer overflows during heavy rainfall
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

¢ flood resilience projects completed flood restience projects in urban areas, including the
installation of new pumping stations and the reinforcement of existing sewer networks to handle
increased water volumes

s community engagement initiatives launched community engagement programmes to educate
residents on preventing sewer misuse, which can contnbute to blockages and flooding

* greeninfrastructure ntegrated green infrastructure solutions, such as sustainable urban
drainage systems (SUDS) to manage surface water run-off and reduce pressure on the sewer
network

These efforts have significantly reduced the incidence of sewer flooding in several areas, demonstrating its
commitment to protecting communities from the impacts of extreme weather events However, more progress
needs to be made It will continue to deliver preventative maintenance and engage with communities to
discourage sewer misuse

Affardable bills

Bull nises have been high on the news agenda Even with recent rises, bills 1n 2030 will be lower after inflation than
they were in 2015 It supported more than 70,000 customers with their bills and debt, auto-enrolling them onto
schemes where possible Additionally, it assisted more than 150,000 households on Priority Services, marking a
34% increase from last year Ofwat has recognised 1ts Vuinerability strategy, ‘Every Customer Matters’, as a strong
approach to supporting vulnerable customers It was rated exemplary in four out of five categones

Excellent customer service

It gained ground in the UK Customer Satisfaction Index However, it has a significant journey ahead of it to reach
the top 10 position by 2050 set cut In tts Strategic Direction Statement In addition, Value for money at 72%,
although higher than for 2023-24 (67%), remains lower than i1ts 84% target During 2024-25, 1t continued to
demonstrate leading customer service performance, as evidenced by receiving one of the leading scores for C-
MeX, Ofwat’s metric for assessing the quality of service that water companies provide to household customers In
a world of deching trust in water companies, CCW, the independent voice for water consumers in England and
Wales, also recognised that its custormers see trust starting to return Its water efficiency engagement programme,
including household home checks and non-household visits, has also been successful

Enhancing the environment

To deliver g better environment for nature ond people
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The ambition

In its Strategic Directron Statement, which sets out its aims for 2050, 1t 15 targeting

» never harming the health of the water environment through its abstraction
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

« restoring the quality of its rivers and coastat waters
» being a net zero carbon business {by 2040}
* doubling its contribution to the region’s biodiversity

2024-25 overview

It has actively engaged with the government’s Water Commussion, led by Sir Jon Cunliffe, not only to advocate for
simphfied but robust regulation but also to shape the future by championing the whole catchment-level solutions
proposed in the Sustainable Solutions for Water and Nature {SSWAN) inttiative, which 1t reported last year

Sustmnable water abstraction

Coming out of a prolonged dry spring and summer, its reservoir and aquifer levels are below average While it s
not currently planning to introduce restrictions, safeguarding long-term supply requires us all te play our part by
actively reducing both per capita consumption and leakage from the supply network

It has successfully reduced leakage compared to 2023-24 However, given that this Performance Commitment
makes use of a three-year average which currently includes significant break outs from 2022-23, the reduction 1s
not immediately evident Consumer demand, measured by per capita consumption, also using a three-year
average, 1s now benefiting from stable data and has shown a reduction in compareson to 2023-24 These
improvements will help decrease the valume of water it abstracts from rivers and boreholes, with environmental
benefits.

Excellent nver and coastol water quality

Despite having no serious pollution inaidents, the above average rainfall during the year contributed to an increase
in total pollution intidents This s not where it wants its performance to be - every pollution incident, no matter
how serious, 1s one too many, and 1t 1s determined to turn around thus drop in performance 1t 1s investing further
in monitereng — going from just over 3,000 te 10,000 in-sewer manitors — to give it advanced warning of issues, as
well as an enhanced maintenance programme, customer behavioural engagement, and a new ‘solve at source’
approach that will take a holistic attitude to managing wastewater catchments

it has invested In schemes to support some of the most frequent storm overflow spillers, utihsing a mix of concrete
holding tanks and nature-based solutions such as the creation of wetlands }

Leading the industry in its Al-powered smart river monitoring to protect waterways and improve water quality, it
conducted trials at 12 sites and installed real-time monstoring for recreational users at two coastal, two river, and
one estuarine site

Net zero carbon

It further decreased its annual gross greenhouse gas emissions in the year and remains on track to achieving
carbon neutrahty in its operations by 2030

increased biodiversity

Its focus on nature-hased solutions [NbS) ncluded submitting 36 evidence packs for groundwateranfluenced storm
overflow tnals to Defra, ploneening a NbS Skills Bootcamp for its employees funded by the West of England
Combined Authority, and submitting a £20m Ofwat innovation Fund bid NbS Connect it exceeded its target to
boost biodiversity on Sites of Special Scientific Interest (S551)

Empowering people

Overview |

The success of WWSL depends above all on the people who work for 1t and their dedication and commitment to
the public purposes of the company They are also part of the communities it serves and share the public’s
concerns about the water sector As it looks ahead, it wants to harness the power of the organisation to builld on
its successes and learn from the challenges so 1t can deliver on 1ts 2025-30 business plan Its performance depends

upon its people and it will only achieve this through harnessing their talent, skills and experience
7
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

In this last year, many colleagues have moved within WWSL, often taking up more responsible roles and
developing their skills and knowledge This has enabled it to retain dedicated people It has provided many
upskithing opportunities and helped people progress their careers with it The diversity of its workforce has
increased and s internal networking groups are active, raising awareness, providing insights and information and
holding networking events for all However, there 15 still more to do in a number of areas

It continues to ensure everyone 1s aware of its achievements and challenges and how it is addressing them Its
monthly Executive Committee newsletter, Managers Brief and Source Digest, keep everyone informed about the
opportunities tn s region Al its schemes, its environmental initiatives and health and safety prionties are shared,
and everyone ts invited to share their own experience and suggestions with the senior team Everyone (s
encouraged to ‘have their say’ and its Chief Executive, Ruth lefferson, receives fresh ideas from its teams to which
she perscnally responds

Its Wellbeing team, led by its Health and Safety Management team, meets every month to discuss physical and
mental wellbeing, with a calendar of initiatives on offer to all Its learning and development team continued to
offer a full blend of classroom traming, a mentoring framework and e-learning soluttons n the year, to
complement comphiance training requirements A range of bespoke development solutions were also designed and
delivered to respond to additionat development needs

The ambition
Empowering its people 1s an ongoing prionty It achieves this by
+» keeping everyone informed of its achievements and top priorities through newsletter communications

= delivering a quarterly leadership forum to cascade messages from the top and work together on its
challenges and prionties

* ensuring everyone receives regular ‘check-ins’, where 1t discusses wellbeing, communicate cbjectives
and provide guidance and support for all

« developing everyone through a range of mandatary and optional traiming solutions, providing coaching
and mentoring, and offering a range of apprenticeship opportunities and professional development

Financing the future

Qverview

WWSL returned to profitability this year as the effects of elevated inflation substded YTL1s fully supportive of the
WWSL board’s policy of paying dividends only within the imits set by a prudent ceiing on gearing This sclid
financial foundation enables it ta navigate challenges with confidence and invest strategically for the future In
December 2024 1ts economic regulator Ofwat announced its final determmation on its 2025-30 business plan It
allowed for £4 2 hillion of total expenditure — 17% short of the amount WWSL’s own calculations had shown was
required to meet its obligations and customers’ expectations, and support growth in the region

It has proposed to almost double its investment programme over the next five-year pertod, with more than

a quarter of the investment being used to remove nutrients from treated wastewater discharges so housebuilding
and growth can continue n the Wessex Water region, while protecting the water enviranment In view of this it
has asked the Competition and Markets Authority {CMA) to review how much it can invest in wital water and
sewerage improvements over the next five years

At the same time, 1t s actively exploning alternative strategies - an imporiant step as 1t prepares to double s
current investment levels and meet emerging obligations, including ambitious phosphorus reduction targets
These

efforts unfold agawnst a backdron of hewghtened risk, particularly (n strategic areas It remawns vigilant and proactve
in identifying, communicating and managing material business risks
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
The ambition

Its aim has always been to exhitut the charactenstics that contribute to its success and positive reputation, not
least by showing strong governance, transparency, accountability, efficiency and financial resihence YTL has now
owned WWSL for 23 years, making it the longest single owner of a UK water and sewerage company Ouring this
time, it has maintained a simple financial structure, avoiding any aggressive or artificial tax planning

In its strategtc direction statement to 2050 15 has committed to

* being the most efficient water company in the industry - harnessing the power of markets and real
competitton and championing an outcomes-based approach to regulation where efficiency can be
maximised through flexibiity and choice

« maintaining a strong investment grade credit rating and being well-regarded by financial stakeholders
= delivering for wider society and the environment through sustainable financing, measured using
environmental, social and governance (ESG) metrics

Resthent financial stewardship

After recording a loss last year, WWSL returned to profit in 2024-25 driven primanly by higher revenues allowed by
Ofwat and lower index linked interest costs Increases in operating costs continued to be felt, principally with
business rates, new obligations and other inflationary pressures, including the annual pay deal for its colleagues
However improved performance on energy markets and a reduction in credit loss charges offset increases to some
extent

1t successfully placed £600m of long-term debt financing in March 2025

WWSL Financial Highlights (July 2024 to June 2025)
e operating profit increased by £28 8m from £151 7m to £180 5m
®  Revenues increased by £92 2m or 15 4%

s Operating cost increases of £65 3m or 14 5% related principally to new obligations, one off charges
for disposal of intangible assets and other inflationary pressures

s the cost of debt reduced from 6 8% to 5 4% We maintained a balanced mix of financial instruments
and maturities

»  Netnterest payable reduced by £28 Om from £176 8m to £148 8m pnimarily reflecting the impact of
inflation on index linked borrowings

» Investment expenditure on tangibie, intangible and right of use assets dehivered during the year was
£427 8m, down £4 Om from £431 8m last year and in ine with expectations

¢ profit before tax of £31.7m was an improvement of £56 8m from last year’s lass of £25 1m

» Interest cover, as measured by netinterest payable excluding indexation to earnmings before interest,
tax and depreciation reduced from 3 Ox to 2 9x

B. WESSEX WATER ENTERPRISES LTD

Wessex Water Enterprises Ltd continues to strengthen 1ts position as one of the leading environmental
infrastructure and resource management businesses As a wholly owned subsidiary of Wessex Water Ltd, the
company delivered satisfactory commercial performance white maintaining a clear focus on sustainability,
regulatory aignment, and customer-led innovation

There have been significant challenges during the year, mainly due to Wessex Water Enterprises operating on sites
operated and owned by Wessex Water Services Limited Many of these sites are undergoing mayor transformation
with sigmficant investment to upsize and enhance treatment processes This in the short term is reducing velumes
of biogas for Power Generation and leading to reductions on Liguid Waste treatment capacity across multiple sites
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Wessex Water Enterprises wholly owned subsidiary GENeco Ltd, produced no biogas from its Food Waste facility
from August 2024 This also wmpacted the Pawer Generation activities at Wassex Water Enterprises most
sigruficant site in Bristol The Wessex Water Enterprises Group generated external revenues of £26 3m (2024
£29 3m) from a number of activities in the Wessex Water Services Ltd region

Key achievements and developments during the year included

* Infrastructure Cptimisation and Resilience

Signuficant progress was made in reinforaing operational capacity across key regional assets The reopening of the
Chard treatment centre to external iquid waste delivered immediate benefits in relteving system pressure and
restoring processing fiexibility across the local network At the Taunton site, targeted operational interventions
helped manage seasonal demand spikes and improve service continuity These actions formed part of a broader
resithence programme focused on safeguarding business-critical infrastructure under rising demand, climate
volatiity, and tightening regulatory conditions

* Strategic Contract Wins and Retentron

The business secured and retained multiple long-term, strategically significant contracts with local authonties and
utility clients These agreements not only reinforce recurning revenue streams but also enhance the company’s
visibiity and influence within key regional markets The contract wins reflect Wessex Water Enterprises’ track
record of trusted high-performance delivery, commercial competitiveness, and abihty to align with evolving
environmental priorities

* Customer Experience and Service Enhancement

Continued focus on customer experience led to enhancements across reporting, communication, and
responsiveness This included the introduction of new digital tools, streamlined complaint resolution processes,
and increased vistbihty of service performance data for commeraial chents Customer satisfaction scores and
retention metrics improved year-on-year

* Innovation and R&D — Organic Waste Valonisation

The company broadened its research and development programme to identify and evaluate high-value end uses
for organic waste streams under 1ts control Investigations covered a range of applications including sustainable
protemn production, pyrolysis and gasification, low-carbon fuels, hydrogen productien and nutnent recovery
systems These efforts form a cornerstone of the longer-term strategy to extract greater environmental and
commercial value from existing operations and to establish new product-based revenue streams

C. TURNBULL INFRASTRUCTURE & UTILITIES LTD

Incorporated in October 1998, Turnbull Infrastructure & Utilities Ltd 1s a leading prowider in hifecycle construction
and infrastructure operations and 1s cammitted to delivering cost-effective, low-waste, high-value solutions that
contribute meaningfully to local communrties and the broader economy

Several significant achievements were realised during the year, strengthening its market position and enhancing
the service offenings

10
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

s Tier 1 Nuclear Contract Award, successfully secured a long-term Tier 1 contract within the nuclear sector,
reinforang its presence in this highly regulated and strategically )/mportant industry This award positions
the Company for further growth and stability within a sector that 1s central to the UK's future energy
strategy

= Regonal Expansion in Suffolk and Somerset, made strategic investments in new regional offices located in
suffolk and Somerset These hubs enhance its local operational oversight and provide a base for training
and developing local talent

»  Enhanced Design Capabilities, successfully established a dedicated in-house design team, enhancing its
ability to meet chent-specific requirements and streamline project workflows from concept through to
execution

s  Operator’s License (O Licence) Accreditation, secured its own O Licence, enabling the Company to manage
and operate logistics and transport requirements independently This development enhances the service
delery capacity and broadens the offering to chents

Looking forward, Turnbull Infrastructure & Utilities Limited 1s well positioned to capitalise on recent achievements
and proactively respond to emerging market trends and sector challenges Priorities for the future include,

*  Securing Long-Term Framework Agreements, a key focus will be the acquisition of long-term framework
contracts within the nuclear and other highly regulated sectors These agreements offer sustainable
revenue streams and the opportunity for long-term collaboration with clients aligned to our values and
technical capabilities

*  Geographic Expansion, increastng the Company’s presence within the Thames Valley corridor Positioned
strategically between its current operations in the South and East of England, this area offers significant
opportunities for business growth, talent acquisttion, and service delivery integration

Revenue for the year was E31 9m, of which £31 8m was (nternal within the Group and therefore eliminated on
consalidation (2024 £29 5m)

D WATER 2 BUSINESS LTD

The principal activities of the Company are retail services relating to the provision of water, sewerage and trade
effluent services to non-household customers, together with advice on water efficiency services (1 e leakage
detection and repair, water audits and benchmarking}

Water 2 Business Limited continued its strong performance in the non-household water retail market, reporting
revenue of £345 7m (2024 £292 8m) and a profit after tax of £2 7m (2024 £2 Sm}

The Company has continued to focus on the combination of selective expansion where it considers an acceptable
return is achievable, and retention of existing customers through provision of high-guality customer service The
company secured new contracts with organisations in the hospitality, real estate, textiles and food manufacturing
industries duning the year

Customer satisfaction remains a key differentiator, with a Trustpilot rating of 5/5—the highest among UK water
retailers

Data quality and management continue to be a dominant theme in the market, with imphcations for all elements
of customer interactions The Company has continued to focus on improvements in processes and compliance

with the market performance standards set out by the Market Operator Services Limited ("MOSL") and have seen
positive progress in compliance to 97 7%, the highest of any large retailer (over 100k supply points) in the market

Employee engagement remains high, with a 90% satisfaction score and continued strong retention of 86% (2024
87%) The company continues to invest in staff wellbeing through its “People Promises” charter

Future Prospects

The company 15 well-positioned for continued growth, supported by a commitrnent to customer-centric service
Strategic prionties include

11
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STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

* lavestment in technology and systems to enhance data quality and operational efficiency

*  Ongomng regulatory compliance and proactive engagement with Ofwat, Water Industry Commussion
for Scotland, and MOSL

+  Strengthening hquidity and credit controls to manage cash flow and mitigate risk in a competitive
market

s Sustainability and ESG focus, including further rollout of Automatic Meter Reading to reduce leakage
and support environmental goals

Group Tax strategy
Our attitude towards UK tax planning

Qur approach to tax s fully aligned with our overall objectives We seek to comply with the spint and letter of UK
tax legislation and ciaim all tax retiefs and allowances to which we are entitled We will consider reasonable tax
planning opportunities which are in hne with our nisk appetite As a rule, we do not enter into complicated
structures nor engage in any aggressive or artificial tax planning, because we do not believe 1t 1s the correct thing
to do Due to the size and complexity of the UK tax system, tax s a comphcated area and uncertamnties will arise
Consistent with other business areas, we will seek external advice when required

Approach to nisk management and governance arrangements in relation to UK tax

Our Board 15 ultimately responsible for our tax strategy and engages with relevant individuals withsn the Group to
ensure the strategy 1s implemented, monitored, and reported As UK regulated businesses with sigmificant capital
programmes, we believe obtaining tax relief on capital expenditure 15 a key factor affecting our tax iability Other
factors, such as changes in tax legistation or changes in interpretations, may also affect the amount of tax due,
compared with what has been allowed as part of the regulatory final determination

The level of risk in relation to UK tax the company is prepored to accept

As documented in our finance policies, we adopt a nisk-averse and cauttous approach to tax [n addition, tax i1s
included as part of our risk assessment framework We monitor the overall nisk framework and provide regular
updates to the Boards

The group approach towards dealings with HMRC

We have an open, regular, and professional dialogue with HMRC and, as part of its business risk reviews, HMRC
have always regarded our Group as low risk We are committed to maintaining this low-risk status in the fong term
and beheve that our approach to tax and early engagement with HMRC on any area of uncertainty are significant
factors in mamtaining this fow-nisk rating

Qur total tax contribution

We are committed to paying the night amount of tax at the right time We pay a range of taxes, inctuding business
rates, employers’ national insurance and environmental taxes such as the chimate change levy as well as the
corporation tax showing n our tax charge on the iIncome statement
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Group Risk Management

The effective management of nisk 1s central to how we can deliver effective and efficient services to all our
customers and minimise the impact we have on the environment It 1s critical that we have a robust nisk
management framework in which matenal risks to the business are proactively identified, evaluated,
communicated and the appropriate response defined and implemented The Group’s processes are flexible to
respond to changes tn risk and ensure that the necessary controls and mitigation measures are put in place Risks
are defined as any event that can tmpede our ability to achieve our abjectives The most significant risks facing us
are referred to as ‘principal nsks

WWL Group Risk management process

From the perspective of the WWL Group, the principal nsks and uncertainties are integrated with the principal
risks and uncertainties of the Wessex Water Services Ltd, the main subsidiary The narrative below references the
processes In place within WWSL, with further discussion available tn the annual report and financial statements of
that company

WWSL’s policy on risk assessment and management 1s subject to regular review by its board including the review
and update of risk and tolerance levels The board reviews strategic risks and other principal risks on a regular
basis

Identification and management of risk 15 delivered through a hierarchy of risk management reviews from
operational colleagues, serior management, and Executive Directors The board reviews and 1s ultimately
responsible for nsk It delegates its authonty to the Audit and Risk Committee for the review and oversight of the
effectiveness of the risk management process To aid it in doing thus, the Audit and Risk Committee includes audits
that review the status and mitigations of the prinaipal risks when agreeing the annual Internal Audit programme

Operational staff and senior management review and assess asset and operational risk monthly Risks are scored
based on likelihood and impact on a ‘five-by-five’ scoring mecharmism Risk mitigation plans are recorded and
implemented where appropriate and pre-and post-mitigation scores are monitored

Operational risks act as a foundation for separate tactical nisk registers which feed into the corporate nisk register
The Risk Management Group mawntains and reviews all business risks, the corporate risk register reflects strategic,
comphance, operatienal and financial risks, specifically inciuding health and safety and climate change risks

The Risk Management Group compnses semor managers from across the business The nisks are assessed by
subject matter experts and subject to independent challenge from our risk experts Risks above our tolerance
tevels will have additional measures to manage and mitigate the rnisk exposure

As well as monthly updates on emergent risks, every six months the Risk Management Group submits a summary
of the corporate risk register and a report on the Principal nsks to the Executive Committee (previously Executive
Leadership Team), comprising the Executive Directors

The Executive Comriuttee scrutinises and challenges the nisks, ensuring that we have comprehensively classified
and assessed our risks and have appropriate mitigation methods Any significant emergent risks or matenal
changes in existing risks are reported to the Executive Committee and the board as they anse

The CEO submits a bi-annual nsk review paper to the board This paper details the nisk process, (dentifies the
current principal nisks {(listed below) to the business and the mitigation measures It also records the status of
emerging risks that have been identified as well as any proposed changes to risk appetite and tolerance for
discussion at the board

13



Docusign Envelape ID 823E139A-3399-4284-ATBA-91CD7754A2AE

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

WWSL Risk management governance example

The diagram below explans the governance structure for risk management across WWSL
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

WWSL Principal risks

While the corporate risk register holds over 50 risks at any time, the principal risks are those that the board
consider could have a2 matenial impact on the capabihity of the business to perform its functions All these risks are
subject to active mitigation strategres and the board considers that the Group 1s taking appropriate action to
mitigate the severity and likelihood of those nisks to an acceptable level

We have summarised our principal risks below

WWSL Principal risks — strategic

Piincipal ilsk -Descriptien: o+ < - - i sy Ty - Risk exposure .. Risklevel .
Reputation & Natlgnal or regional Issues that Impact the perception of the business and the trust the pubfic have inus. Increasing High
positiening

Political action Aclions 1aten by government that fundamentally change olr operating environment aftecting the business and/or cash Unchanged High

Nows,

Reguiatary action ACtions 1aken by regulators that fundamentally change our operating environment affec ing the business andror cash flows Unchanged High
Environment & The expectation on the business te create value beyand a tocus on shert (erm perfermance Increasing High
publicvalue

Chmate volatility The need 1o 2dapt 10 changing dimale and weather patterns Incressing High

WWSL Principal risks — compliance, financial and operattonal

Risk expasure » RiskLevel 5

Princlpatrish Besabption » .

Environmental harm | Acyte (e ¢ major pettutlans) or chronle harm to the natural envirenment 25 a resutt of activines conducted by o on behalf Unchanged High
of the company

Supply chain Resgurce scarcily or drsruptions to supply chains which prevent the procurement of products of services at the expected Increasing High

rastience €Ot avallabllity or quatlty

Seture sltes Aninternalor externat threat actar Inltiates a security intident that renders the business unable to deliver the supply of Ingreasing High

systems and safg drinking water and the management af waste resultsin breaches of data protection or other laws, of Impacts critical

aperations activities such as regulatory and Hnandal reporting

Heaithand safety [ Fallure of operational controds or an external hazard that atfacts the haalth and safety of empfoyees, contractors or the Unchangad High
public

VUnunformed #ction | Inagequate informatlon (g g poos asset data) resutting Insub optimal decrslon making unsatisiactory day to day Unchanged High
business aperation/ pertormance and/or anincrease in cost and risk

Resources and skills | Falture to have the right resources with the right skilts In the right place will have an impact on our ability tocperate Increasing Moderate
eftactively and on our sirategic objectives

Governance and Non comphance with our own values, behaviours, and standards, of with stajiory and reguiatory obligations, either Unchanged Moderate

athics unintentionally intentlonally or mallciously (e g insider threat)

Supply of unfitor Inabitity te provide a reliable source of water toCustomers when they need |y in line with quallty standards Unchanged Moderate

insuffictent water

Financial viability Ihabihty toraise tinance at appropriate levels and/or manage cash/gearing to malntain tinanclal viabitity and provide a Unchanged Moderate
suMficient reluin onlnvestment
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STRATEGIC REPCRT (continued)
Non-Financial and Sustainability Information Statement
Introduction

This report is aligned to the principles set out by the Task Force on Cimate Related Financial Disclosures [TCFD)
with the matenal focus of the report on the pnmary subsidiary {(WwS5L) for which Climate change has the greatest
impact

At present, the other Group companies within WWL operate within the UK and predominantly in the same
operating area (geographically) as WWSL There are also sectoral similanties, given the common themes of utilities
infrastructure, construction and environmental protection Consequently, the analysis here of Wessex Water's
physical chmate risks, and transitional risks and opportunities, apply to a large extent for other WWL entities

The energy use and emussions data provided here include available data from the other group companes for
energy consumption and scope 1 and 2 emissions, in addition to that of WWSL

Comphance Statement
The extent of consistency with the TCFD framework

Our chimate-related financial drsclosures are consistent with the four TCFD recommendations and the eleven
recommended disclosures set out in Figure 4 of Sectien C of the TCFD’s June 2017 report “Recommendations of
the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures” This disclosure complies with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 as amended by the Companies (Strategic Report) (Climate-related Financial Disclosure)
Regulations 2022 ('CFD') We have also taken on board the findings and recommendations of the Financial
Reporting Council’s “Thematic Review of TCFD disclosures and climate in the financial statements”, published in
2022, and the Financial Reporting Council’s 2025 review of “Climate-related Financial Disclosures by AtM
{Alternative Investment Market} and Large Private Companies”

1. Governance

Our Board s responstble for our nsks and through two committees of the primary subsidary (the Environment and
Public Value Commuittee and the Audit and Risk Commitiee} who manage our principal nisk of climate volatility

The Environment and Public Value committee advises the Board on the development and delivery of the Group’s
purpose, strategy, and values, which drive change and influence the group’s environment and social purpose The
Audit and Risk Committee provides assurance and challenges the overall nisk, control, and governance framework
on behalf of the Board including for our principal risk of climate volatility Our governance arrangements are
outiined in WWSL’s Governance Report and how we meet the Ofwat Better Leadership, Transparency and
Governance objectives as well as the Wates Principles The Board reviews and monitors the group’s progress
agamst numerous environmental performance commitments, including our greenhouse gas emissions

Responsibihity for responding to ciimate related risk and opportunities 1s shared across the Directorates and 1s part
of our overall approach to nisk and resilience  The WWSL Director of Engineering and Asset Management manages
our resihence framework through two groups the Risk Management Group, who manage the overall risk and
resikence process, and the Risk Performance Cost Group, who review and approve capital-based mitigations to
improve our resilience  Chmate change and volatility i1s one of the stresses identified in our resilience action plan

We have produced four climate change adaptation reports, meeting the Government’s adaptation reporting duty
These cover the physical chimate nisks, wdentified, and graded, and the management measures bemng used {outhined
in the strategy and risk management sections in more detail) Management review the progress being made
toward our net zerg carbon route map annually WWSL report’s its carbon footprint each year to Ofwat and
within its report
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STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
2 Strategy

We are a long-term business and aim to be a genuinely sustainable Group As such, we are attuned to changes
that will take place over several decades Qur management plans for water resources and, dratnage and
wastewater have a 25-year timescale, and we reflect UK climate projections running to the end of the 21st
century These long-term plans are translated into short- and medium-term delivery through the five-year
tvestment plan cycles We have identified impacts over the short {0-10 years), medium {10-30 years}, and long
term {30-100 years) honzons

Policies and Strategles

Qur services and operations are affected by weather patterns, so our climate change and resiitence action plan are
crucial to our business Chimate impacts have a bearing on many of the core services that we provide ~ it will affect
water avatlability, water quality, and the efficacy of sewerage and surface water management, among other

things Heatwaves and drought have clear impacts on water supply and demand, while prolonged or intense
rainfalt affects the qualty of water sources and the capacity of our wastewater network Adapting to a changing
chmate 15 integral therefore to our long-term strategic direction, five-year business plans, and subject-speciic
exercises such as water resources planning Our ¢chmate change adaptation report sets out overall strategy and
our programme of work in the short and long term, 1n relation to our main physical chmate risks

Alongside physical risks associated with chimate, we will be affected by the necessary transition to a low carbon
economy Transition nsks and opportumties are also evident for both functions, especially when we include
embodied emissions in construction materials and consumables Qur wastewater emissions are karger and are also
likely to be harder to abate, especially in relation to process emissions Providing water and wastewater services
involves significant amounts of energy use and emissions of methane and nitrous oxide as well as carbon dioxide
We are committed to reducing our carbon footprint, reflecting the expectations of our external stakeholders -
including investors, NGOs and the public — as well as mittgating the physical nisks of chmate change Our net zerp
carbon route map sets out how we plan to address cur operational emissions during the 2020s and signal the need
for tackled embodied carbon emissions

Implications for the Group’s strategy and finances

Chimate change and decarbonisation considerations are among the many factors that influence our strategic and
financial planning Specifically, physical climate risks inform the functional plans (e g our 25-year water rescurces
and drawinage and wastewater management plans) that underpin our business plans that set out the investment we
will undertake to maintain or enhance the services we provide These investments are dominated by regulatory
requirements Costed plans for decarbonisation are part of our 2025 business plan subrmission  There will be market
or fiscal dnivers behind most investment, but where these are absent (e g nitrous oxide emissions) a particular case
will need to be made to justify expenditure based on the extent of the environmental impact

We are increasingly looking at whole life carbon impacts, with an addittonal focus on the embodied carbon of capital
projects and consumables This s already part of our annual reporting and will feature also in our 2025 business plan
and future investment appraisal 1t 15 clear, however, that a large investment programme to improve river quality
will have a significant carbon footprint f it 1s dominated by conventional solutions such as storm tanks
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

The most significant chmate-related financial impacts are likely to result from disruption caused by extreme weather
events |n the short term these can take various forms, for example

. heatwaves that increase water demand necessary use of water sources with the highest unit costs of
treatment, plus additional pumping costs

. extreme ramfall costs associated with responding to localised site flooding, additional water
treatment at sources affected by runoff and leaching, and addittonal pumping In the sewerage
network

We estimate the extreme rainfall in 2024-25 added circa £3-4m to our operating costs during the year In the longer
term we expect the financial impact to grow In real terms, as extreme weather events become more frequent, and
pressure grows to maintain resihient services We expect very large assaciated investment | ¢ £400m duning 2025-
30 to reduce storm overflow discharge frequency and volume, and a range of supply and demand-side measures
that will allow us to reduce abstraction by 20% by 2050, with most of the reductions happening by 2035 In both
cases the fong-term impacts of chmate change are not the sole contrtbutor, but are nonetheless part of our
maodeliing

We are currently appraising the financial effects of our planned decarbomsation work and across the full range of
potential measures there will be a significant value to the marginal abatement cost to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions This reflects the maturity of the technologies involved, the makeup of the supply chain, and the changing
economics of the default, traditional approach Overall, our direction of trave! 1s to internalise carbon costs, and we
will prioritise options that are impactful, best value on a whoie life cost basis, or preferably both

Dependencies upon unproven technologies

Cur transition plans are based on a range of technologies Many are readily avallable and operating at scale -
especially in relation to energy and transport However, some options are still in development, or not yet readily
available in the UK utilities sector These include

availlability of low carbon versions of heavy goods vehicles required to carry/tow loads,
robust cost-effective and scalable advanced thermal conversion of sewage sludge,

. aMMonia recovery as way to reduce treatment energy while producing 2 hydrogen carrying substance,
and
. low carbon concrete and steels, where ‘grey’ solutions are required
3 Risk management

identifying and Assessing Risk

We prioritise investment or other action to address risk of any nature according to the likelihood and consequence
of the hazard occurring  For chmate-related risks, our thinking 1s also informed by the UK Climate Projections, the
UK Chmate Risk Assessment, the findings of the IPCC and the National Adaptation Plan  We also use an inventory of
UK water sector-specific chimate hazards for our wider climate risk assessments presented in our climate change

adaptation report

The UK Climate Projections {UKCP18} provides the most up-to-date assessment of how the climate of the UK may
change over the 21st century It provides data based on

. different levels of probability,

. four ermussions scenartos based on the representative concentration pathways {RCPs) used by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Chmate Change (IPCC), and

. several overlapping time periods to cover the 21% century
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

We use UKCP18 outcomes to inform the 25-year long-term delivery strategies (Water Resources Management Plan
and the Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan} as part of WWSL’s 2025 price review and provide the context
for the proposed investment durning an initial period of 2025-30  The strategies refer to common reference scenanos
for chmate change, technology, demand, and abstraction reductions with a benign (RCP2 6} and adverse (RCP 8 5)
version of each, analogous to the atmospheric concentration of greenhouse gases that would result from low and
high emissions globally

UKCP18 outputs

The table and chart below summarise UKCP18 projections {between the low emisstons RCP2 6 pathway and the
high emissions RCP8 5 pathway) for changes to average rainfall and summer temperature in our region, refatwe to
a 1981-2010 reference period

2030-59 2050-79 ' 2070-99

spth percentile for probability i

Summer (Jun-Aug) precipitation -12% to -15% _ -15%to-25% -17% 10 -36%
Winter (Dec-Feb} precipitation ' +7% to +10% +9% to +17% +9 %10 +26%
Summé-r average délly temperature . ;1 7t0+23°C +1%t0+4 0°C +2_1 to +6 0°C
Least likely, more extreme cutcomes

Summer precipitation ) ’ :28% 10 -34% -31% to -48% -34%10-62%
Winter precipitation +19% to +25% . +21% to +38% +24% to +54%
Sufm:ner -av.eta_ge daily tem&perat.ure ) +28to :+3 8‘C- +3 2 t-o +6 3°C -+3 5t0+9 3_°_C

It 5 clear that across all scenarios and timescales, summers will be drier and winters will be wetter Overlying these
trends, during short term time horizons we expect a lot of vanation from one year to the next Moreover, the
resiience of our services 1s affected more by extreme weather events - such as heatwaves, droughts, intense
storm events and prolonged rainfali - than by changes to averages As background warming takes place, weather
events previously considered extreme or unusual are likely to occur more frequently This s the most critical 1ssue
for our resiience and adaptability

Winter and summer rainfall, projected % change

30
25 — RCPBS
20 p - RCPEO
: =—
10 __‘__mz__é:________ — RCP4S
3 —7"'_’ amne RCP26
.10 ==
.15 — — RCP2Z6
25 \\ ‘\\ - RCP45
30 \\ RCPB O
:: — RCPBS
5 ¥ 3 OB ¥ 8 B ¥ ¥ %
# &8 £ 8 8 8§ § 8 § 8

Projected % changes for winter {upper) and summer {lower) ralnfall vs 1981-2010, average of Dorset.
Somerset & Wiltshire, S0th parcentlie for probabllity (source UKCP18, grobablistc, via UK Chimage Risk
Indlcaters)
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STRATEGIC REPORT {continyed)

Our experience dealing with acute weather-related impacts helps us factor them into our planning activities and
group nisk assessments Motable examples include

*  summer 1995 - the driest summer since 1911 and the driest three-month period since 1938 Efforts to
reduce leakage were stepped up following this event,

» the prolonged rainfall of summer 2007 that required widespread emergency response and led to a
fundamental national review of surface water management,

. the heavy rainfall of 2012, with the wettest summer since 1911, followed a year later by the wettest
three-month peniod since 1911 from December 2013 to February 2014,

e the 2018 'Beast from the East’ cold wave and the subsequent thaw which caused widespread
outbreaks of leaks and pipe bursts, and

»  Heatwavesin 2021 and 2022, the second of which ceincided with the driest January to August period
since 1976,

. October 2023 to September 2024 was the wettest 12 month penod since our records began in 1871
with 1376mm of rainfall

Further details can be found 1n pages 5-7 of WWSL's chimate change adaptation report

Chmate-related risks will affect the rehiability and quality of the services we provide to customers and
communities, and place greater stress on water environment This in turn will likely lead to greater pressure on our
activities

Principal Chmate-related Risks

Water resources - quantity

Acute heatwaves lead to peaks in water demand which can challenge the throughput and capacaty of water
treatment and distnbution Droughts reduce yields from groundwater and reservoirs, while we have not had to
impose restrictions since 1976 to maintain public water supplies, droughts lead to pressure to reduce abstraction to
protect the freshwater environment and alleviate low river flows

Detailed chmate nisk assessments are carnted out for our Water Resources Management Plans, for which climate
change scenario are an integral part We estimate the rmpact of changing rainfall, evaporation and temperature
patterns and the impact that these may have on river flows, reservoirs, groundwater recharge and ultimately on
deployable output, and impacts on water demand Our most recent water supply vulnerability assessment included
the following conclustons

*  the impact of the median impact chmate change scenano on deployable output was low for both the
dry year annual average and dry year critical period scenarios,

* the baseline impact of chimate change 1 the 2080’s 15 estimated at -3 69 Ml/d on average (1% of base
year deployable output} and +1 07 MI/d for the peak scenano {0 2% of base year deployable output),
and

e by 2045, the increase in overall consumpticn resulting from chimate change amounts to 17 MI/d
representing a smali proportion of overall distnbution tnput (¢ 0 5%)

We are supporting research projects to improve our modelling of the relationship between weather and demand
Such models may be driven with cirmate forecast changes to weather conditions in the future, leading to revised
predictions of chimate change impacts on demand

Water resodrces - quality

Extreme wet conditions can increase turbidity in water sources, while warm or dry contdhitions can lead to reductions
in quality due to biological activity Our experience also shows that heavy rainfall — both in prolonged episodes or
shart, sharp spells — can result i contamunants bewng washed into reservoirs or groundwater sources Past episodes
have given rise to high levels of nitrates in relation to extremely wet autumn and winter conditions
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STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

Sewerage, sewage treatment and sludge

The highest risks for our wastewater activities relate to inundation of sewers durnng intense or prolonged rainfall,
with adverse impacts on customers and recewing watercourses Others include odour during warm weather,
reduced dilution in receving waters during drought leading to tighter end-of-pipe standards at water recycling
centres, and sedimentation in sewers, also due to drought Because of these risks, cimate change impact
assessments are increasingly used in wastewater investment planning, such as the drainage and wastewater
management plans Overall, with a changing chmate and an increase in impermeable areas connected to the sewer
system, we need to make sure that our pipes have sufficient capacity to cope

Climate change projections and assessments of risk involve recogmsed uncertainties, including ;

e the future return period of unpredictable extreme weather events such as multi-season droughts,
future emissions, atmospheric greenhouse gases concentration, and the pace of chmate change, |
+  the specific influence of climate change for issues such as flooding and water demand where there are
many factors invoived,
e the costs and benefits of adaptation options and the suitability of the measures we choose, and
. the potential for new issues

Further details can be found in appendix 5 of WWSL's chmate change adaptation report

Transition Risks

While the UK transition to a low carbon economy presents several opportunities, there are some evident risks in
relation to energy use and our greenhouse gas emissions Most of these risks are expressing themselves in the
short to medium term {1 @ under five years), shaped by current policy and economic factors, although we expect
them to persist and intensify in the longer term

Energy use

Since the late 1990s our electricity use increased by 40% due to higher effluent quahty standards (which often
require energy Intensive treatment such as mechanical aeration and ultravioiet distnfection), and the need for a
more resilient water supply network Concerted energy efficiency work has been necessary to prevent even higher
energy use Our electncity consumption 1s also extremely sensitive to the weather High rainfall increases the
volume of sewage moving through our sewerage natwork, and heatwaves increase public water demand and the
energy required for treating and pumping water With the backdrop of this and lngher energy prices, the i
economic and financial rationale for self-generation 1s more compelling Renewable energy generation from our
appointed business in 2024-25 amounted to 20 gigawatt hours of electricity and 140 gigawatt hours of
biomethane, providing financial benefits in terms of sold energy and reduced energy purchase, as well as the
subsidies that are offered

Regulotory

Through a performance commitment agreed with Ofwat, we pay customers £19,500 for every kilotonne of carbon
dioxide equivalent emissions iIf we exceed our annual target Carbon footprint reporting is also required for cur
Annual Report to Ofwat, for Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting and as part of the UK Emissions Trading
Scheme Our annual reporting to Ofwat extended to embodied carban emissions from 2022-23 onwards From
2025 there will be a common greenhouse gas emissions performance commitment far water companies in England
and Wales, with an expanded st of items being included (affecting scope 3 In particular) and a fixed emission
factor for scope 2

Market/investor pressures

We are seeing more interest in our carbon footprint, than has been the case histoncally, from institutional
investors, fund managers and ratings agencies In response we provide disclosures via the Carbon Disclosure
Project, and information to our parent company, YTL Power, to meet the hsting requirements of Bursa Malaysia
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Customers ond other stokeholders

The DESNZ public attitudes tracker shows that concern about cimate change has risen steadily over the last ten
years In the most recent survey [winter 2024-25}, 80% of people said they are concerned about chimate change,
with 37% saying they are “very concerned” The same survey shows that support for renewable energy 1s at 82% -
lower than three years ago but higher than the average during 2012-2018 We believe that there will be growing
expectatton that we reduce our carbon footprint and increase our resilience to cimate risks, alongside other areas
of environmental delivery

Quuantification of emissions

We are confident i the level of emissions related to energy and transport  However, ermssions of methane and
mitrous oxide {within scope 1) are much less certain, as they are estimated by water companies in the absence of
direct measurement methods Work 1s underway nationally to better quantify methane and nitrous oxide, and
initia! findings suggest that historically they have been under-estimated Locking ahead, it is probable that the
emission factor for nitrous oxide emitted from every kilogramme of nitrogen in the sewage that we receive, will be
revised upwards A literature review carried out in 2020 for UK Water Industry Research, and the base
assumptions used by the Intergovernmental Panel on Chmate Change, suggest that a more accurate estimate of
mtrous oxide emissions overall could be four times higher than currently reported Monitoring work underway by
UK water and sewerage companies will provide more accurate estimates of nitrous oxide emissions at water
recycling centres, a revised national emissions factors will resuit in the need to revise our own histonical and
forecast carbon footprint

Emissions associated with construction matenials and products and services that we consume via our supply chain
are uncertain  We are working to gain a better high-level understanding of these scope 3 emissions,
acknowledging that the calculations mvolved often carry many assumptions and estimates For example, the
carbon footprint of one tonne of steel or cement can vary substantially depending on the types of energy used at
the point of manufatture, and the distances involved in the supply chain

Managing physical chmate-related risks

Typically, the chmate-related nsks that we have identified are convergent with our core services and activities and
thew associated KPIs Also, cimate change acts as a threat multipher, rather than an entirely free-standing set of
risks

The table beiow provides detail of our control measures and actions in relation to the climate-related physical nisks
profiled in the third UK Chmate Change Risk Assessment (2022) that we consider have the most bearing on our
activities, and the respanses set out tn the third National Adaptatian Programme (2023) In the context of TCFD
reporting, the controls and actions noted can be considered as our main cimate change adaptation opportunities
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STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
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STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

Managing our greenhouse gas emissions

We use vanous methods for managing our greenhouse gas emissions, summarised below but detailed on p7-8 of
WWSL's pet zero carbon route rmap

* Avoiding emisstons — our preferred option to reduce cur emissions by looking at catchment based and
natural-based solutions and reducing volumes of water and sewage

*  Optimisation — through transport and energy efficiency and through process emission savings
Renewable energy - by generating energy from waste and using other renewable solutions including
partnerships with third parties for energy generation

Looking ahead, decarbonisation of the UK electric grid and of road vehicles by 2030 will reduce our emissions but
these would be insufficient for reaching net zero emissions We will need to pursue a wide range of opportunittes
far cutting carbon that will require addinonal effart and wvestment {especially during 2025-30} These wil mclude
some readily available options, using established methods and known technologies, which have a favourable
balance of costs and carbon reduction benefits Beyond these are more Innovative options mvolving emerging
saence and technology, it 1s likely that these will need to play a part if we are to achieve a net zero carbon
position The tables below shows some of the work and opportunities identified

R T, §r2000 2025 W K bt o W | PR oL AV, 2GE 200 T U LR

iy

AR e
:

Reducing volumes of Reducing the amount of water that has to be pumped and trested by + Promoting sustanable dramage, primanty to reduce Rooding risk but akso
warer and sewage reducing laakage by 15% and reducing our o S watee g roreduce purmped valumes.
through demand managemernt measures.
Avoiding transport * imvesting in mfrastrocnare 1o enable the ranstion t electric and other non= | » Programmadrre aut of appropriate electric cars and vans and assockated
emisslons fossi tuel velucles. Infrastnscture
*+ Starting to use electric cars and vehides on acequiat basls. » Integration ot kowet Carbon HOVS

» Trialling HGV's powered by compressed natural gas and biogas.
* Wide use of homeworking and tefeconferencing technologes

Avolding tossil hueluse | < twestigatong alternatives ta diesel for bickup electnaty generation, and * Invesiment in non-diesel backup generation, induding renewable energy
avauding like-tor-iike reptacement with DATIETY STOrEge

. LW*"‘J:‘ fower :ﬂa bon methods for keeping anseroble shudge digesters at | « Investment in alternative. low carben heating of ansercbiz digesters.
SWa temperal

Natyre sndiang-based | = Ongoing catchment dellvery work focused on water guality with side- » Extending the scope and sophistication of caichment management bn.rura!
solutions. benefits of avoiding mors energy fmtensive treagment methods, and areas lo prevent diffuse pollution and heip retain sall carbon.
defivenng muttiple environmental benefits. « Targets and systems within our capital programee for minimising the
*investigation of the carban footpnnt of more novef treatment methads eg whole-hie carbon footpring of water snd wastewater investment.
constructad wetlands
AsseTmamtensnce *+ Oagoinguse of lower Carbon Methods eg. trenthiess pIpe repaurs ang * Cngoing methane moniloring a1 shudge treatment tenties. with cofmective
rehabiliation, maintenance work
= Appralsing methane at Qe shudge centres
e ry ) =P RN W= T TR SOt 3 e T My RS e gy
opmisation= LS4 Sir ST W B 2020, 5028 NP G Mn e S (e o SR RZ S 5025°2030 17 AP Sy T O Wik
Energy efficency » Continuateon end expansion of energy effidency inltiatives
= Ongoing development of advanced monitoring and targeting focusing principetly on wastewater treatment and pump efficiency
Process emissions from | + initlal testing of nitrous oxide monitoring and contrel systems. * Roll-out of nitrous oxide monltoring and control measures, starting at the
Stwdge and sludge » improving quantification of methans emissions from L of largestwater recycling centres with aerapon processas
both existmg 253ets and those m design.
Transport efficienty  Further use of technalngy 10 optimise vehiche movements and reduce mileage
« Increasing focus on vehicle fuel/ electrical efficiency
Lower carbon = irvestigation and defivery of lower carbon constrxtion materials and » Putting whole-hfe carbon benchmarks and targetsinto place for capital
constyuttion marerials methods eg, low carbon cement / contrete offsite and modutar build schemas
and methods * Developing systems for comparing the whole-ife carbon footprint of s Working with our supply chain tounderstand thek carbon footpring and
competing options guiting in place plans to reduce this
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

BT A A C [ N " " -
Renewables: =% Ay [ 77 a0 T, d0e0emRs, L | R Z'DZS-ZO?? L .
Energy fromwaste +Qptimising existing digesters, in part to maximise gas production » Ongoingwork toincrease blogas production
= Ongolng export of omethane at Bristol and Trowbridge « Retalning green gas certificates relsting to exported biomathane
« Trials of heat recovery from sewage pumping stations »increased digestion of other arganicwaste sireams
«Implementing sewer heat recaovery al sites with the greatest potentlal
Other renewable » lrwestigating suitable sites for further renewsble geneation, = impt ing new ins (eg wind. solar) on or adcent to our own
generation + Exploring partnership oppertunities with commesclal and commwunity fand
energy deveiopers « By 2030, increasing renewabte electricity generation todouble the
= Reviewlng the potential for energy crops and ather types of biomass for currantquantty
heat generation,
Renewabte grid « Exploring potential power purchase g with off siter b « Any agrerd powes purchase agreements to commence
electndty purchase generatars » 100% of residual electnuty and gas requirement from venfied renewable
» Monltoning green energy tariff markets sources
« Ersuring future snergy contracts offer wansparent end venfable green
energy
1
insenting 2020-202% 2025-2030
Land basedmeasures * Quantifymg carbon capture on our landhotding. beyond current highlevet = Working with farmers on retention of s0il carbon, eg. restoration of
estimates grassland.

+ Ensuring that our mitigation and landscaping measure maximrse carbon
tapture a8 part of scheme designs and planning

+ Developing guidance For improving carbon uptake and soil carbon levels on
our land

integration of chmate-related risks into the Group's resihence

Qur resilience action plan (approved by the WWSL Audit and Risk Committee) ahgns with Ofwat’s concept of
‘Resthence in the Round’ and considers the resilience of our operational, corporate, and financial systems Our
resthence approach will allow us to focus our effort on the areas where improvement i1s needed to mamntain or
strengthen our resilience

We conduct honzon scanning to identify emerging shocks and stresses, climate change 1s one of the ten stresses
identified in our resihence action plan and s hnked to some of the shocks such as power fallure, extreme weather,
and flooding We manage nisk at strategic, tactical, and operational levels, each of which involves resilience
assessments Chimate change scenarios and extreme weather events contribute to these, such as the analyses
underlying our Water Resource Management Plan and Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan

We use a hierarchy of interventions to systematically encourage the development of mitigations which are
appratsed using a capnals-based service measures framework We have developed this framework to capture and
understand the nisk to service and value of investing to our customers, environment, and operations In this way
we aim to ensure that our investment decisions can deliver against our Performance Commitments and resthence
metrics

4. Metrics and targets
Clhimate related metrics
Our chmate related performance commitments and key performance indicators relate to our strategic objectives \

as set out 10 our strategic direction, which in turn are refated to customers’ priorities, and statutory objectives for \
the environment and social provision as transposed into regufation

operational emissions, monitored by our operational carbon reporting  Qur emission trajectory has been
downwards in that last ten years, however, much of this has been due to decarbonisation of UK grid electricity, as
well as our own efforts Consequently, we are looking closely at other solutions and techniques, e g nitrous oxide
from sewage treatment Further decarbonisation of our activittes will need to align with other environmental
prionties to promote sustainable land use, protect biodiversity and the water environment, improve resource
efficiency, and reduce air pollution This in turn will benefit our customers and the communities we serve

\
WWSL published its net zerp carbon route map In Summer 2021 setting out options for achieving net zero ‘
\
|

Perfarmance commitments are agreed with our regulators and reported against annually in WWSL's annval
performance review The main chmate-related metncs include the following
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Water supply Wastewater
. Compliance with abstraction licences . Properties at nisk of sewer flooding
e Water supply restrictions . Sewer flood risk score
. Water supply interruptions . Internal flooding per 10,000 connected
. Avoided water use from water efficiency properties
measures . External flooding per 10,000 connected
. Water quahity compliance, Events Risk index, properties
water quality customer contacts . Sewer collapses per 1,000km
. Leaks repaired within 24 hours
Cross cutting
. Operational greenhouse gas emissions

Targeted improvement for most of these s mainly driven by other environmental and social factors e g customer
ExperiEnce, river ecology — but our assumption 1s that success in managing each contributes to our resihence in the
face of chimate change

Performance against these and other performance commitments are focused on environmental and social delvery
and do contribute to performance related pay and bonus arrangements, momitared by the Remuneration
Committee

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

We use a well-established process for reporting greenhouse gas emissions, being the UK water sector’s carbon
accounting workbook commisstoned by UK Water Industry Research (UKWIR) The workbook 1s updated annually
with emission factars issued by the government and periodic updates of sector-specific emission factors from
other s5ources such as research and industry databases It s aligned with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol and with
substantive updates has included more scope 3 items

Reporting our performance commitment

A customised methodology was agreed with Ofwat in 2019 for calculating WWSL's performance in relation to its
bespoke performance commitment during 2020-25 This includes a fixed set of items within scopes 1-3, a
predetermined profile for grid electricity emission factors, and the use of the 2019 edition of UKWIR carbon
accounting workbook throughout the period The financial year 2024-25 will be the final year that it reports using
this method
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Reporting other disclosures

The disclosures that follow show the performance over the regulatory year ended 31 March 2025 to align with the
reporting of WWSL, the principal subsidiary

Emissions for 2024-25 are shown on page 28, conforming with Ofwat’s Annual Performance Report framework
that applies to all the companies that they regulate This account also integrates disclosures that fulfil the
requirements of the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting framework This produces a different figure to that
of our bespoke performance commitment, as a greater number of scope 3 categonies are included

All the emissions shown use location-based reporting and represent an Apnl to March year as this 1s consistent
with WWSL's regulatory perfoermance reporting

The Group does not yet purchase certified renewable electricity from grid suppliers, and therefore we are not yet
providing market-based data in this report We will continue to review this option at future buying rounds

Our ermussions during 2024-25 increased by 776 tonnes compared with 2023-24 While multiple factors have to be
taken into account, certain aspects had a notable influence In particular
¢ Electnicity consumption fell with the return to drier conditions than in 2023-24, but still higher than the long
term average The carbon intensity of grid electncity was virtvally unchanged,
e pnatural gas consumption fell by 2 GWh,
® less sludge processed through conventional anaerobic digesters, with more treated by ltming

Renewable energy generated by the Group in 2024-25 amounted to 20 gigawatt hours of electricity and 77
gigawatt hours of biomethane

Assurance
Assurance of WW5L's reported data 1s provided by its technical auditor, Mott MacDonald, as part of the assurance
process for its annual performance review and regulated performance commitments
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Targets

In 2019 we announced our aim to achieve net zero operational emissions by 2030 and net zero total emissions by
2040 This apphies to Wessex Water Services Limited and the emissions associated with its appointed activities
The 2030 aim 15 based on the items within scope in 2019

¢ Scope 1 burning of fossil fuels, process emissions, group vehicles
= Scope 2 purchased electricity {generation)
* Scope 3 purchased electnicity {transmission & distribution), business travel, outsourced activities

QOur 2030 aim s not a saience-based target, but we consider it to be aligned with the principles of the Pans
Agreement and the United Nations Convention on Climate Change 1 5°C pathway [t also would involve a sharper
reduction than the typical profile of Science Based Targets, which involve a 50% reduction of scope 1 and 2
emissions, commonly between 2020 and 2030 Our targets and planming are also contextualised by the UK’s 2050
net zero aims and successive national carbon budgets

We have not undertaken any carbon offsetting to date and buying carbon offsets would be a last resort, although
we cannot entirely discount this approach Even with full pursuit of the options available to us, we are likely to
have residual emissions in 2030 - especially related to nitrous oxide and methane emitted from sewage and sludge
treatment This is true under all forms of carbon accounting, whether corporate carbon accounting with items
being added to scope 3 reporting, or a fixed-in-time reporting as per the inihial commitment made in 2019 as part
of the Public Interest Commitment If offsetting were unavoidable, we would favour schemes that offer benefits
for biodiversity and local commumities as well as carbon reduction, such as nature-based projects in our region, or
maore innovative approaches such as coastal watland creation or restaration, or storage in marine vegetation such
as sea grass We will engage with qur customers and other stakeholders on the topic of carbon offsetting to
understand their viewpoints The table below presents future targets for other climate-refated metrics, as set out
in Ofwat’s final determination for 2025-30

Climate-retated metrics 2025.2030

. L e e s . < Wasseline . ' - 2025.26 " 20287 -, 202720 2020-29 CC 2098.30
Leakage (% reduction from 2019-20) 559 86% 121% 15 3% 17 9% 12 8%
Unplanned outage 48%: 43% 37% 3 2% 27% 21%
Water supply mterfuptions {rnutes / customesr f year) 000500 0005 00 0005.00 000500 00 0500 000560
Per capita consumption [9% reduttion from 2019-20) 08% 0.6% 0 1% 09% 19% 32%
Business demand (% reduction from 2019 20} 29% 27% 3 296 4 2% 5 8% 72%
Water quality Compliance Risk Index o000 o000 Qoo 000 000 000
Internal sewer fooding (Incidents / 10 000 connectrons) 162 154 L46 1339 il 123
External sewer floading 1693 1655 1€17 1579 1541 1503
Poltution Incidents - total (Incidents / 10 000 km of sewer) 26 61 2502 2342 2182 20.23 1863
Poltution incidents - serious (incidents} 0 1] 0 0 0 0
Storm overflows {spills / overfiow) 2189 2164 2066 1865 1824
Discharge permit compliance 100 0096 100 00% 100 00% 100 00% 100 00%: 100 00%
River water quality (96 reduction phosphorus enmissions) 56 3596 55 353% 5703% 60 07% 61 44%
Bathing water quality {9b) 779% BOE% B0 6% 806% BO 6% B0 6%
Gresnhouse gas emmissions, water (% reduciian) 000% 019% 098% 143% 2 05% 368%
Greenhouse gas eftussions wastewater (3 reduction) 0009 -546% 501% 2 9096 005% 6019
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

The energy use and emissions data provided below is not exactly the same as the Wessex Water Services Ltd
account, as we have included available data from the other group companies for energy consumption and scope 1
and 2 emissions

Energy consumption (as per SECR requirements)

Year To March 25 ‘Ye-ar T; N.I;lrch 24 ©oumt
aornore OO uisonore SO
Energy consumption T ’ ’ ” T
used to calculate 483,843,007 20,532,546 466,043,412 . 32,631,970
emissions i o N ) i L -
Greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes €Oz equivalent) Vear to Yearto
X ) A March 25 March 24
OPERATIONAL EMISSIONS
Scape onet 64,666 61,798
Burning of fossil fuels (location-based} - h - - r21,'407 o 15,233
;;:_)cess anc-1 fl;g‘:t_n:fe e-mlmssmns T _ ) ) -31,;70 34,755
Group vehlcles“ - o o ‘ ’ o 11,888 11,810
Scope two -
Purchased electricity (location-based) ] - . H4sj,oos 50,696
Scope three? B N 46,383 47,079
Business travel ’ ) - ssi 1,067
Outsourced activities 1,682 8,56_51
P‘L;r;hased ele;trlcq-ty— extractlon,- prt-)ducn;n, transmission & dlstnbut'u—)n i5,82.5 12,09‘4
Purchased fuels extraction, production, transmisston and dtstrlb;mo-n 4,588 B 5,621
Treatment chemicals? _ 13,784 10,578
Reuse of hiosolids on third party land ' 9,622— 9,158
Gross operational emissions _ 159,054 159,573
Subtr:jctuonsw exported renewable electricity - ~ - -
Net operational emissions . 159,054 159,573

1The items included in our operational emissions reported below were expanded 1n 2022-23 This 1s a result of Ofwat
increasing the number of scope 1 1tems to be included in regulatory reporting within the annual performance report,
with the following being added well-to-tank factors for electricity generation, electricity transmission and
distnibution, and purchased fuels, treatment chemicals, and re-use of biosolids on third party land

2 A scope 3 capital carbon figure was included for whole life carbon estimates for our PR24 busmess plan subrussion
*The 2022-23 figure for treatment chemicals and capital projects have been corrected The former correction has
resulted in a correction of the 2022-23 gross and net operational emissions figures also

31



Docusign Envelope ID 823E139A-3399-4284-A7BA-91CD7754A2AE

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Acting to promote the success of the company (s 172 (1) statement}

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a director of a company to act in good faith, as he or she considers
will most [ikely promote the long-term success of the company for the benefit of all stakeholders as a whole

This section sets out how the Board has had regard to the matters set out in 5 172(1) {a} to (f) in particular

o the likely consequence of any deciston in the long term,

» theinterests of the group’s employees,

» the need to foster the group’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,

» theimpact of the group’s operations on the community and the environment,

s the desirability of the group in maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and
s the need to act farrly as between members of the group

tn discharging our section 172 duty, our directors, individually and collectively as the Board, act as they consider
will best promote the success of the Group, for the benefit of ali our stakeholders As part of this duty, our
directors have regard for likely long-term consequences of decisions and the reputation of the business
demonstrated through high standards of business conduct

Our 5172 duties have regard to our employees and to alf our external stakeholders

+ Employees - The Board regards the group employees as critical to deliver the vision, values and outcomes
needed to meet our wider stakeholder expectations It has established a number of channels to allow
employees to be heard whether to raise concerns, make improvement suggestions or stmply to appreciate
how we work with them The People’s Council 15 a forum attended by representatives across the whole
business and allows any employee to raise agenda items for discussion through therr representative The
Counctl 1s attended by Board Executive Directors and meets twice a year In addition, the Group undertakes
an annual anonymous employee survey, the actions and progress towards meeting them debated within
the Board The Group also has Employee roadshows, funch and learn sessions and an ‘Ask the CEQ’ on a
regular basis to improve learning, appreciation of other departments and to share the messages from the
Board

» External Stakeholders — Our directors also have regard for our business relationships with cur wider
stakeholders, our social purpose, the impact of our operations on the environment and the communities
we serve, as well as the need to act fairly to balance all stakeholder needs Consideration of these factors
and other relevant matters 1s embedded into all Board decision-making, strategy development and risk
assessment throughout the year

Our key stakeholders and how we engage with them are set out in the table on the next page
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Our key stakeholders and how we engage with them are set out in the table below,

Our aimis tobe a
world-leading
group and we can
only do this
through prowiding
customers with
excellent service
and value for
maney

excellent service from us
delivered efficiently at
excellent value Theywant
bilis to be affordable, and have
the peace of mind that they
are supported m times of
need They want excellent
drinkeng water quality and
waste removed without
pollutron They want us to
provide our services inte the
long-term, ensuring we have
resillence through sustainable
and responsible [nvestment

Non-residential

Those more vulnerable or facing
difficult ercumnstances
Mincrity/Under-represented
groups

Developers

Retatlers and bulk supply
customers

Future customers and
generations, mcluding children
and students

Customer feedback surveys
Customer contacts

Market research

Feadback routes through
customer maganne
Website, induding livechat
Developer consultations
Young People’s Panel
Working with schools and
students

Money Matters Projects
NHS Key Worker Subsidy

Stakeholdergroup | What matters o pur Wha? Group engagement Board level engagement and
stakeholders? Impact
Customers Qur customers want an Residenual Custamer Challenge Group Every Custamer Matters

Strategy

Performance metncs
QOperationa! Resilience

Young Peopie s Panel
Catchment Panel
Enwvironment end Public Vaiue
Committee and our Social
Purpose

Feedback from our customers
and thalr representatives
Informs our strategy, values,
priorities including (but not
limited to) our business
planning priontles, charges,
and pricing strategy

Customer
representatives
We value the
opinions of all gur
customers and
thew
representatives

Our customer representatives
want to ensure that we value
all customers and engage fully
with them to understand their
requirements, needs and
concerns Our customer
reprasentatives want to
prowide unresincted chaltenge
to us for the betterment of all
customers

Qrganisations represenung
customers i general such as
Ciuzens Advice, Consumer
Counci for water {CCW) or
particular representatives such
as Bnstol Age UK.

Customer Challenge Group
Tailored Assistance
Programme

Online partner hub and
roadshows

CCW pubhc meetings

Custorner Challenge Group
CCW public meetings
Feedback from our eustomers
and their representatives
informs our strategy, values,
priorities including {but not
Imuted to) our business
planning pronties, charges,
and pricing strategy

Qur peaple

Qur people are the
embodiment of
our tulture and
allaw us to provide
excellent service to
our customers Qur
people are also gur
customers

Qur people strve for
excelience in thelr work and
want to be developed to ther
full potential, working in a fully
inclusive workplace, be given
opparturities to shine and be
rewarded fairly for the work
they do They want to be
valued and their health and
wellbeing kept safe from
harm

Current employees and thewr
families

Retired employees and therr
families, Pension scheme
members and trustee board
Future employees

Unions

People’s ¢counad
Employee survey

‘Ask the CEQY

£mployee roadshows
Lunch and Learn talks
Apprenticeship Provision

People’s councl

Ask the ‘CEQ’

Pension Trustee Board
Employee commitiee

Hestth, safety and welfare
committee

We listen and act gn our
employees’ opinlons to provide
our people with satisfying
caredrs

Our supply chaln
Excellent
relationshlips with
aur suppliers are
key to dellvering
excellent services
10 OUr customer
and nurturing
business and
Innovation within
our communities

Our supplliers want us to
provide them with fair, open
and competitive oppartunities
regardless of their size $0 that
both ourselves and they ¢an
grow and excel  Our suppliers
want fair payment terms and
assistance dunng times of
economic hardship so that
they can support us In
delivering ertical services to
our customers

External suppliers
Other group compames

Wessex Water marketplace
Memberstup of British Water
Pipeline industries Guild

ol:1]

Our suppllers have provided us
with innovative and new ways
of working to dellver more
services for less We listen and
nurture our supply base
ensuring they are during times
of hardship

Our investors
Qur investors
provide the
financial support
to enable us to
detver our
strategy and live
our values

Our investors want to support
a group that provides
reputatianal and financial
benefits to them They want
long-term performance thats
suppaorted by sound strategy,
planning, govemance, nsk
management and
sustainability

Banks and financiat institutions
Bond holders
Shareholder

Ratings agencles
Annual Report

Ratings agencies

Annual Report

Dividends

Qur investars provide our
financial resilience
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Stakeholder group | What matters to our Who? Group engagement Board level engagement and
stakeholders? tmpact

Government and Our regulators and Government departments Performance and risk Board meetings and

Regulators government want the best MPps reparting Committess

Qur Regulators outcomes for our custamers, Local councillors Strategic Pohicy Statement Pre-appointment interviews

provide the the environment and Chwat Pnice review methodology Business planning and target

oversight to allow resilience Thay want us and Enviranment Agency Charging setting

us to contribute to the water industry to be Natura! England Annual Review, Annual Health and Safety strategy

the UK as a natlon, responsible, trustworthy and owi Performance Report and Envirgnment and Public Value

1o support gur transparent in all our activities | Health & Safety Executive interm accounts Committee

environment, our fensions regulator Health lialson panet Qur ragulaters inform our

puthic health Market Operator Services Ltd strategy, our business plans,

standards and our [MO5L) our processes  They provide

economic valuzhle Enput into everything

tnfrastructure we do

Eavironmental Our environmental colleagues | Wildiife interests Catchment Pane( Emviranment and Public Value

NGOs want us to value, protect, Bathing water and river amenity | Wessex Water Foundation Commuttes

We take our role
as 3 custodian of
our local
envirgnment

preserve and enhance our
tacal envaronment, and
contnbute 1o wider

interests

Catchment and Land
Management

Waste minimisation

Uaisen groups

We embed the opinions of our
environmentat cofleagues into
our aspirational direction and
priorities

environmental improvement
senously and with
that the opinlons
of our
environmental
colleagues

The following case studies for WWL Group, provide some examples of how stakeholder interests have been taken
Into account in Board discussions and principal decisions taken during the reporting year Principal decisions are
central to the formation and delivery of our strategy and are those critical to our long-term performance and
success In any decision we consider the needs and requirements of all of our stakehalder groups, cognisant that
we may not be able to meet everyone’s requirements as positively as we would ke and take careful consideration
of competing prionties

Principal decision 1 - WWSL Response to the draft determination in respect of the PR24 Bustness Plan

Throughout the 2024-5 reporting year the WWSL board was closely involved 1n ongoing decision-making around
the PR24 business plan process Briefings and discussions on PR24 continued throughout the year prior to
publication of Ofwat’s draft determination in July 2024

The WWSL board then undertook extensive deliberation as to an appropriate response Careful consideration was
given to Ofwat’s critique of the onginal business plan in the context of the plan’s ambition and 1ts content —
particularly the unprecedented level of capital Investment it contained - assessing this against overall deliverabiiity
and financial resilience of WWSL The WWSL board took account of 1ssues raised by Ofwat in respect of cost figures
and targets set out in the business plan and discussed and gave due account to areas of legitimate challenge
Through 1ts numerous discussions and questioning of WWSL leadership, the WWSL board had regard throughout
to the longer-term interests of WWSL, the environment, and its stakeholders — particularly in identifying
opportunities for compromise that did not matenially prejudice deliverability, financial resilience or perfermance
while mimimising the risk of matenal impact to customers

Principal decisian 2 — WWSL Referral of PR24 Business Plan to the CMA

The WWSL board also needed to give due consideration to the of the final determinatron published by Ofwatn
December 2024 In approaching this matter the WWSL board had to again have close regard to the interests of
WWSL and 1ts various stakeholders and to make a decision as to whether the content of the final determination
was sufficient to meet the requirements of AMP8
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

The WWSL board, after extensive constderation of the amounts required for delivery of WWSL's AMPS investment
programme and for supporting customers, employees and the environment, reached the conclusion that the
allowances provided for in the final determination were not sufficient to maintain the long-term financial viability
of WWSL The WWSL board recognised that an appeal to the CMA represented a significant step, and had careful
regard to the nsks involved, particularly the risk of the CMA reaching a deciston that was less beneficial than the
position in the final determination Ultimately the WWSL board reached the decision that referral of this matter to
the CMA was in the best interests of WWSL and ts stakeholders

Principal decision 3 - WWSL Approving contractual relationship regarding support for AMP Delivery Programme

The WWSL board considered proposed arrangements between WWSL and YTL Infrastructure (UK} Limited (YTLI) -
a YTL Group Company —n relation to delivery of the AMPB capital programme The WWSL board recogmised the
need for comphance with hicence conditions and wider regulatory requirements, and for WWSL to maintain control
over delivery of the programme, and that the commercial relationship should reflect this, including through robust
reporting and auditing processes and contractual arrangements The WWSL board also noted the important role
that the expertise held in YTLI would play in supporting delivery of this ambitious programme but also allow YTLI to
enhance the capabilities of the YTL Land and Property group The Board emphasised the key principle that the
customer should suffer no detriment but should be in the same or better position as they would be if these works
were carried out by WWSL Having established this position clearly, the WWS5L board approved these
arrangements

The WWSL board agreed with the proposed level of intenim expenditure having determined the scheme to bein
the best interests of 1ts customers, WWSL and regulaters

Principal deciston 4 — Appointment of new WWSL Chief Executive

In 2024, Colin Skellett stood down as Chief Executive of WWSL after 36 years in the role The appointment of a
suitable replacement involved extensive deliberation by the WWSL board The WWSL board had regard to the
various challenges faced by WWSL both in the immediate term and also those likely to crystallise over the coming
years Due consideration was given to the leadership required to nawigate these challenges while ensuring that the
interests of WWSL and its various stakeholders was properly represented After careful scrutiny of the various
candidates for the role the WWSL board determined that Ruth Jefferson, the incumbent Chief Comphance Officer
of WWSL, would be appointed Chief Executive and this was formally confirmed at a meeting of the WWSL board in
September 2024

The strategic report was approved by the Board of Directors on 19 September 2025 and signed on its behalf by

Cahn Skellett
Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directers present their Directors’ Report and the financial statements for the year to 30 June 2025
DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and subsequently were

Colin Skeiiett

Mark Watts

David Barclay

Francis Sock Ping Yeoh *
Seck Kah Dato Yeoh *
Seok Hong Yeoh *

Seok Kian Yech *

*Share interests of these Directors are disclosed in the accounts of YTL Power International Berhad and YTL
Corporation Berhad

Directors’ Interests

During the year no Director was matenally interested in any contract with the Company or wath any of its subsidiaries

Directors’ Emoluments

Salary Bonus Benefits Total Total 2024
2025 £000
£000 £000 £000 £000
Colin Skellett 73 - 5 78 313
David Barclay 140 - - 140 122
Total 213 - 5 218 435

In addition, Directors’ emoluments and share interests in respect of services to group companies for Francis Sock
Ping Yeoh, Seok Kah Dato Yech, Seok Hong Yeoh and Seck Ktan Yeoh are shown in the accounts of YTL Power
International Berhad and YTL Corporation Berhad, the pre-penultimate holding company There were no matenal
services to the company

No directors are accruing benefits under Group pension schemes Colin Skellett and Mark Watts recerved
emoluments of £615k and 397k respectively for their services to the other group companies

Directors’ Share Interests
Shares held
The ordinary shares of YTL Power International Berhad of Malaysian Ringgit {MYR) 0 S0 were held by

At 30 June Movements At 30 June
2024 2025
Mark Watts 330,306 - 330,306

There were no other interests in shares of group companies that are disclosable in these accounts There s no
requirement for directors to hold shares in the company

Dividends

The dividend policy 1s to declare dividends consistent with the Company's performance and prudent management
of the economic risk of the business The dwdend 1s shown in note 10
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Going concern

An overview of the business activities of the group 1s given in the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 35 A review of
the principal nisks that the group faces 1s given in the nsk management section on pages 13 to 15 The debt
facihiuies avallable at the year-end date, amounts outstanding and the matunty profile of this debt are shown in

note 19

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements and medium and long term funding requirements
through the cash and short term deposits described in note 18 and the facilities described in note 19  During the
year the Group 1ssued £600m of corporate bonds under 1ts £5bn Euro medium-term note programme reflecting
the Groups ability to secure finance Under some of the facilities the Group s required to comply with an interest
cover and gearing covenant tested quarterly and the covenants remain the same in the new facilities

The Directors have considered the finanaial position of the Group and cash flow forecasts for the period from the
date of approval of these Financial Statements through 31 December 2026 (the going concern review penod) and
have concluded they will be able to meet their habuities as they fall due and comply with the covenants for the
going concern review period In coming 1o this conclusion, the directors have evaluated the impact of current
macroeconomic and geopolitics on revenues and debt, the repayment of loans maturing in the going concern
review period, the required future financing requirements of the Group and for WWSL, Ofwat’s announcement of
the PR24 final determination and the subsequent referral of this determunation to the Competition and Markets

Authonty {CMA) Find out more about the appeal to the CMA

The Directors have noted there 1s debt falling due for repayment within the going concern period, tn particular
£120m KFW IPEX Bank loan due in January 2026 The Directors have considered the consistently strong operating
performance, market experience for the Group and other water companies, the current leverage and credit rating
of the bonds and a successful history of 1ssuing bonds and raising debt over the past 20 years, most recently the
band 1ssued in March 2025 Based on this constderation, as well as the time peniod available to raise the required
funding, the Directors are satisfied that the issuance of debt included within the forecasts for the going concern
period to repay the loan and finance the capital programme over the period 1s achievable

In order to facilitate the future 1ssuance of bonds the Group established a £5bn Euro medium-term note
programme on & September 2023 The first issuance under the new programme having taken place in November
2023 with the latest 1ssuance in March 2025 The programme has since been renewed on 6 September 2024

On the assumption that any required funding described above will be successfully rassed by the Group for the
reasons noted above, the Directors have considered a severe but plausible downside scenario, to assess the
impact on covenant comphance through the going concern review periad This includes considering the impact of
adverse macroeconomic factors including higher inflation and interest rates combined with lower consumption
and operational events such as asset and customer service faillures leading to regulatory enforcement In situations
requinng mitigations to be deployed, the Group could reduce discretionary expenditure, defer capital expenditure
and/or cancel non-essential capital expenditure

Accordmngly, after considening the forecasts, appropniate sensitivities, avarlable facihties and the ability to raise
additional debt, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence and to comply with its financial covenants for the going concern review period through to 31
December 2026, therefare, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial
Statements

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Our greenhouse gas reporting uses a very well-established process, being the UK water sector’s carbon accounting

workbook commissioned by UK Water Industry Research (UKWIR) The workbook is updated annually with

emission factors 1ssued by the government and has had penodic updates of sector-specific emission factors from

other sources such as research and industry databases [

Emissions for 2024-25 are shown on page 31 All the emissions shown use location-based reporting and represent
an April to March year to align with the regulatory umeframe published by the main substdiary
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Sustainablity

The Group has a sustainability vision that guides its progress towards being a sustainable water group The
sustainability vision 1s reviewed bi-annually

We are honest in the way we conduct our business We treat one another, our customers and the environment
with respect

Ethical policy

We are determined to maintain our reputatton as a Cornpany that observes the highest standards of personal and
corporate integrity by adhering to a strict code of business ethics We aim to be the best and value everyone's
contrnibution in our pursuit of excellence

Our People

I takes great people and great teamwork to provide our services That's why we encourage and reward our
employees for their contribution to achieving our aims We seek their ideas and put them into practice, celebrate
success and encourage them to go the extra mile This year we launched our People Programme, a dedicated
programme of iltiatives to address current and future strategic people priorities in areas icluding resourcing,
talent management, reward and recognition, future working, diversity and employee wellbeing

Our apprenticeship strategy 1s proving successful for both the Company and the local community, offering secure
employment opportunities across our region

Employment

The Group 15 an equal opportunities employer No person or group of persons applying for a job with the group 15
treated less favourably than any other person or groups of persons because of their gender, race, class, colour,
nationalty, ethnic ongin, marital status, sexval orientation, age, trade union membership or activity, religious behef or
physical or mental disability Selection procedures and critena ensure that ndividuals are selected and promoted on
the basis of their relevant menits and abilities These procedures are monitored and regularly reviewed Where
necessary, the Group provides staff with special training facilities to enable them to compete or qualify for positions, or
to progress, within the Group

Modern Slavery Act

The Group 15 committed to meeting the aims of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 We strongly oppose slavery and
human trafficking in our supply chains and in any part of our business To be trusted to do the night thing 1s one of
our core values We would never knowingly engage with suppliers or contractors involved in slavery or human
trafficking 1n accordance with the requirements of the Act we have pubhished on our website a Slavery and human
trafficking statement 2018

Environment Policy

The Group protects, conserves and improves the environment and operates in a socially responsible manner
Working practices are continually revised as improved techniques and technologies become avallable The
environment policy 1s reviewed annuaily

Research and Development

The Group carned out research and development 1n support of existing activities 1o improve the reliability and
effectiveness of water and waste water services
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Charitable and political donations

We aspire to be responsible members of our commurity as it reflects our aim of doing the right thing 1t ss also
important to colleagues, customers and our shareholder

During the year £939,941 was donated to UK chanties (2024 £726,584) There were no political donations 1n
either year

Supplrer Payment Policy )

We need to mamtain relationships with suppliers who meet our high standards and demonstrate that they operate
in accordance wath recognised standards that uphold human rights and safety, prohibit modern slavery and
promote sustainable sourcing

The policy in respect of its suppliers 1s to agree the payment terms for transactions in advance and to make
payments in accordance with those terms At 30 June 2025 trade creditors represented approximately 11 days
trade purchases (2024 18 days} The Group does not follow any specific external code or standard on payment

policy

Corporate Governance

WWSL 1s required to meet the objectives and supporting principles on Board leadershup, transparency and
governance as published by Ofwat in January 2019 Details of comphance are shown in the Regulatory Accounts and
Annual Report and accounts of WWSL whose registered address 1s Wessex Water Operations Centre, Claverton
Down, Bath, BA2 7WW

Disclosure of Information to the Auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of thus Oirectors” Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 15 no retevant audit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware, and each Director has taken
all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group's auditaor 15 aware of that information

Other Information

An indication of hikely future developments in the business and particulars of significant events which have
occurred since the end of the financial year have been included in the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 35
information on the use of financtal instruments by the Company are shown in note 26 to the financial statements

Re-appointment of Auditor

Following a resolution of the Board Ernst & Young LLP were re-appainted as the auditor of the Company for the
current financial year

By arder of the Board,

Colin Skellett
Director

19 September 2025
EL
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE STRATEGIC REPORT, THE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financizl statements in accordance with
apphicable United Kingdom law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with UK
adopted international accounting standards Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the
campany and of the profit or loss of the group and the company for that period

In preparing these financial statements the directors are required to

. select suitable accounting policies in accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently,

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

. present information, including accounting policies, i a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information,

. provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific requirements in IFRSs 1s insufficient

to enable users to understand the tmpact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the group and company financial position and financal performance,

. in respect of the group financial statements, state whether international accounting standards n
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained m the financial statements,

. in respect of the parent company financral statements, state whether international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained n the financial statements and

. prepare the financial statements on the gong concern basis unless 1t 1s appropriate to presume that
the company and/ or the group wilt not continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and explain the
company’s and group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and the group and enable them to ensure that the company and the group financial statements comply
with the Compantes Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and parent
company and group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities

Under apphcable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for prepareng a strategic report, directors’
report, directors’ remuneration report and corporate governance statement that comply with that law and those
regulations The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financial
information included on the company’s website

Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge

. that the consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit of the
parent campany and undertakings included 1n the consolidation taken as a whaole,

- that the annual report, including the strategic report, includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the group and undertakings included in the consohdation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertamties that they face, and

. that they consider the annual report, taken as a whole, s farr, balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the group’s position, performance, business model
and strategy
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Note 2025 2024
£m £m
Revenue 34 1,003 1 8639
Expected credit toss charge {27 0) (23 3)
QOther expenses (800 4) (680 7)
Total operating costs 5 (827.4) (704 0)
Other aperating Income 5 9.1 45
Net valuation losses 15 (0.4) -
Qperating profit 3 184.4 164 4
Finance income 8 98 132
Finance costs 8 {154 &) (185 B)
Net financing expense {144 6) {172 6)
Profit/{loss) before tax 398 (82)
Taxation g (11 5} 78
Profit/{loss) for the year 283 {04)
Attributable to’
Equity holders of the parent 275 (11)
Non-controting interest 0.8 07

Profit/(loss) attributable 28.3 {0 4)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Note 2025 2024
fm £m
Profit/{loss) for the year 283 oa)
Other comprehensive income/{loss)
Items that will not be reclossified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit asset 21 5.6 (64}
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 9 {1.4) 16
42 {a8)
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences - forergn operations 02 ©03)
(02) (03)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income tax 40 {51)
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 32.3 {55)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 315 (62)
Non-controlling interest 0.8 07

Total comprehensive Income/{loss) for the year 323 {5 5)
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Consolidated Statement of Financia! Position

At 30 June 2025
Note Group Group
2025 2024
£m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 4,798.4 4,511 1
Right of use assets 11 6.2 40
Intangible assets 13 371 48 5
Non-current financial assets 15 1016 982
Retirement benefit surplus 21 17 58
4,955.0 4,667 7
Current assets
lnventories 16 81 84
Trade and other receivables 17 2993 297 0
Other financial assets 18 500 10
Cash and cash equivalents i3 55.1 56
4125 3120
Total assets 5,367.5 4,979 7
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 18 {1.5) {10 4)
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 19 (149.5) (119 3)
Corporation tax payable {1.7) -
Trade and other payables 20 {283 8} (309 9)
Provisions 23 (2 0) {17}
{438 5) {441 3)
Non-current habilities
Other interast-beanng loans and borrowings 19 {3,412.7) {3,025 6)
Contract liabilities 20 (5.8} {57}
Retirement benefit deficit 21 {0.6) {07)
Deferred income 22 (336.5) (324 0)
Deferred tax habihities 24 (592.8} (581 3)
(4,348.4) (3,937 3}
Total habilities {4,786 9} {4,378 6)
Net assets 3 580.6 6011
Equity
Share capital 25 131.8 1318
Retained earnings 446.7 468 0
Non-contralling interest 25 21 13
Total equity 580.6 6011

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 September 2025 and were signed on its
behalf by

Colin Skellett, Director
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Statement of Financial Position
At 30 June 2025

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current lrabllities

Bank overdraft

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables

Non-current iabihties
Other interest-beaning loans and bhorrowings

Total habilities

Net assets

Equity
Share capital
Retained earnings

Total equrty

Note

14
15

17
18
18

18
19
20

19

25

Company Company
2025 2024
£m £fm

- 01

- 02

839 814
131.9 1285
01 01
215.9 2103
5.1 291

- 10

- Q2

51 303
2210 2406
{1.4) -
{12.5} (43 6}
{22.6) {39 4)
{36 5) {83 0)
{36 2) {72)
{36.2) {(72)
{72.7) {90 2)
148 3 150 4
131 8 1318
16.% 186
148.3 150 4

Duning the year Wessex Water Ltd {the Company) made a profit after tax of £50 7m {2024 £79 9m)

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 September 2025 and were signed on its

behalf b

Colin Skelfett, Director
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Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Group

Balance at 1 July 2023

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss !

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Dividends

Total contributions by and distributions to owners

Balance at 30 June 2024

Bafance at 1 July 2024

Total comprehensive mcome for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners, recorded directly 1n equity
Dividends

Total contnibutions by and distnbutions to owners

Balance at 30 June 2025

Note

10

10

Non-
controli-
Share Retained ing Total
capital earnings interests equity
£im £m £m £Em
1318 5522 06 6846
- {11) 07 (04)
: (51) - (51)
- (6 2) 07 (55)
- {78 0) - (78 0)
- {78 0) - (78 0)
1318 468 0 13 6011
131.8 458 0 1.3 601.1
- 275 08 283
- 4.0 - 40
- 315 0.8 323
. (52.8) - (528)
- (52.8) - (52 8)
1318 446 7 2.1 580.6

45



Docusign Envelope 1D 823E139A-3399-4284-A7BA-91CDT754A2AE

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Company

Balance at 1 July 2023

Total comprehenswe income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive iIncome

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Dividends
Total contributions by and distributions to owners

Balance at 30 June 2024

Balance at 1 Juiy 2024

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive iIncome

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Dividends

Total contributions by and distributions to owners

Balance at 30 June 2025

Note

10

10

Share Retained Total
capital earnings equrty
fm £m fm
1318 167 1485
- 799 799
- 799 799
- {78 0) {78 0)
- {78 0) {78 0}
1318 186 150 4
131.8 186 1504
- 507 50.7
- 507 50.7
- (52.8) (52 8}
- (52.8) {52 8)
1318 165 148.3
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Statements of Cash Flows
For year ended 30 June 2025

Group Group Company Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
Note £m fm £m £m
Cash flows from operating actvities
Profit/{loss) for the year 28.3 {04} 50.7 799
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 5 138.0 1261 0.2 01
{Gamn) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 {4 86) {14) - -
Property, plant and equipment written off 5 14 19 - -
Net loss on derecognition of intangible assets 5 143 - - -
Impairment of investment/loans in subsidiary - - - (0 4)
Net foreign exchange differences 02 - - -
Decrease in Fair Value of investments 15 0.4 - 0.4 -
Financial income 8 {9.8) {13 2} {59 5} {86 4)
Financial expense & 154 4 1858 29 30
Taxation 9 115 {7 8) - {0 3)
3341 295 2 (5 3) {4 1)
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other recevables {6.6} (41 8) 05 -
Decrease in itnventories 03 02 - -
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (49.0} 517 03 02
Increase/(decrease) in provisions and employee benefits 0.3 {01) -
{55 0} 100 0.8 02
Tax received - 77 - 02
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities 2791 3129 {4 5) {(37)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 91 21 - -
Proceeds from infrastructure charges and capital

111 57 - -
contributions
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment {365 B} {423.0) - -
Acquisition of intangible assets (15 0} (73) - -
Additional equity contribution in subsidiaries - - {15) -
Interest recewved 3is 70 - -
Dividends received - - 8.3 775
Acquisition of financiat instruments (50.0) (90 0) - -
Proceeds from sale of financial instruments 1.0 137 3 1.0 10
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities {405.9) (368 2) 67.8 785
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from barrowings 19 8559 409 0 2,0 140
Interest paid 19 (125 3) {105 0} {0.2) (z23)
Repayment of borrowings 1g {482.0) {314 9) {4.1) (13 9)
Payment of principal portion of lease habilities 19 (0.8) {06) - -
Dwvidends paid (62.6) (71 5) (62.6) {(715)
Net cash generated from/{used in) financing activitias 185.2 {83 D) (64.9) {73 7)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 584 (138 3) {1.6) 11
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July {a 8) 1335 02 (0 9)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 18 536 (4 8) {1.4) 02
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policles

1.1 Basis of preparation

Wessex Water Limited {the “Company”) 1s a private company incorporated, domiciled and registered in England in
the UK The registered number 15 02366633 and the registered address s Wessex Water Operations Centre,
Claverton Down Road, Bath, BA2 7WwW

The group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and 1ts subsidhanes (together referred to as the
“Group”) and equity account the Group’s Interest in associates and joint ventures The parent company financial
statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its group Both the parent
company financial statements and the group financral statements have heen prepared and approved by the
Directors 1n accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006 On publistung the parent company financial statements here together with the group
finantial statements, the Company 15 taking advantage of the exemption in s408 of the Companles Act 2006 not to
present its individual income statement and related notes that form a part of these approved financial statements

In preparing these financral statements the Directors have considered the impact of chimate change including but
not mited to the impairment of assets and compliance with regulations and are satisfied there 15 currently no
material impact on the group’s financial performance and position The accounting policies set out below have,
unless otherwise stated, been applied cansistently to all periods presented in these consolidated finangal
statements Judgements made by the Directors, in the apphication of these accounting policies that have significant
effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of matenal adjustment in the next year are
discussed in note 33

1.2 Measurement convention

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared on a histonical ¢ost basis, except for joint venture
investments that have been measured at fair value The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling, which 1s the Group’s presentational currency, and is also the Company’s functional currency

1 3 Going concern

An overview of the business activities of the group is given in the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 35 A review of the
prinoipal nisks that the group faces 15 given in the risk management section on pages 13 to 15 The debt fachnies
available at the year end date, amounts outstanding and the matunity profile of this debt are shown in note 19

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements and medium and long term funding requirements
through the cash and short term deposits described in note 18 and the facilities described in note 19  During the
year the Group 1ssued £600m of corporate bonds under its £5bn Euro medium-term note programme reflecting
the Groups ability to secure finance Under some of the facilities the Group s required to comply with an interest
cover and gearing covenant tested quarterly and the covenants remain the same in the new facilities

The Directors have considered the financial position of the Group and cash flow forecasts for the period from the
date of approval of these Financial Statements through 31 December 2026 (the going concern review period) and
have concluded they will be able to meet their habiliies as they fall due and comply with the covenants for the
going concern review penod In coming to this conclusion, the directors have evaluated the impact of current
macroeconomic and geopolitics on revenues and debt, the repayment of loans maturing in the going concern
review period, the required future finanong requirements of the Group and for WWSL, Ofwat’s announcement of
the PR24 final determination and the subsequent referral of this determination to the Competition and Markets
Authority {CMA) Find out more about the appeal to the CMA

The Birectors have noted there is further debt falling due for repayment within the going concern period, in
particutar £120m of KFW IPEX Bank loan due in January 2026 The Directors have considered the consistently
strong operating performance, market experience for the Group and other water companies, the current leverage
and credit rating of the bonds and a successful history of 1ssuing bonds and raising debt over the past 20 years,
most recently the bond issued in March 2025 Based on this consideration, as well as the time period avatlable to
raise the required funding, the Directors are satisfied that the issuance of debt included within the forecasts for
the going concern period to repay the loan and finance the capital programme over the pernod 1s achievable
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1. Accounting palicies {continued)

1.3 Going concern (continued)

in order to facilitate the future issuance of bonds the Group established a £5bn Euro medium-term nate programme
on 6 September 2023 The first issuance under the new programme hawving taken place in November 2023 with the
latest issuance 1n March 2025 The programme has since been renewed on 6 September 2024

On the assumption that any required funding described above will be successfully raised by the Group for the
reasons noted above, the Directors have considered a severe but plausible downside scenario, 1o assess the
tmpact on covenant compliance through the going concern review pertod This includes considering the impact of
adverse macroeconomic factors including hugher inflation and interest rates combined with lower consumption
and operational events such as asset and customer service fallures leading to regulatory enforcement In situations
requuring mitigations to be deployed, the Group could reduce discretionary expenditure, defer capitai expenditure
and/or cancel non-essential capital expenditure

Accordingly, after considering the forecasts, appropriate sensttivities, available facihties and the ability to raise
additicnal debt, the Directors have a reasanable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence and to comply with its financial covenants for the going concern review period through to 31
December 2026, therefore, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis i prepanng the Financial
Statements

1 4 Forelgn currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the forergn exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habilities denominated n foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences
ansing on translation are recognised In the income statement Non-monetary assets and labihties that are
measured in terms of hustorical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction

The financial statements of foreign operations are translated into the Group's presentation currency in accordance
with applicable accounting standards Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rate at the
reporting date, while Income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an
average rate if it approximates actual rates Equity items are translated at histonical rates Exchange differences
anising from translation are recogrised in other comprehensive income and accumulated i the foreign currency
translation reserve, and are only recycled to profit or loss upen disposal of the foreign operation

1 5 Financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and bank deposits Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose only of the cash flow statement

financial assets
Inttial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at inibal recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehenswe income {OCI), and fair value through profit or loss

The classification of financial assets at initial recogmtion depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
charactenstics and the Group’s business modei for managing them The Group initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus transaction costs In order for a financial asset to be ciassified and measured at amortised cost or
fair value through OCl, 1t needs to give nise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of pnincipal and interest {(SPPIY
on the principal amount outstanding This assessment 15 referred to as the SPPI test and 1s performed at an
instrument level
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
1. Accounting policies {continued)
1 5 Financial instruments {continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets m order to
generate cash flows The business mode! determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at amortised cost {debt instruments}

This categary is the most relevant to the Group The Group measures financial assets at amartised cost if both of the
following conditions are met

* The financial asset 1s held within 2 business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, and,

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely
payments of principa) and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financral assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are
subject to expected credit loss Gains and losses are recognised 1n profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes intercompany loans repayable n more than 12 months
Derecogmitign

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 15
primanly derecognised {1 e, removed from the Group’s statement of financial position) when

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or,

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obhgation to
pay the recewed cash flows in full without matenial delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement, and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or {b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially alt the nsks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset

Finanaal habtlities
inttial recognition end measurement

Finanoial hiabihities are classified, at inmat recognition, as financial iabhities at fair value through profit or loss, ioans
and borrowings, payables, as appropnriate

All financial habwlties are recognised imibally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs The Group's financial labilities include trade and other payables and loans
and borrowings Accrued interest arising from financral liabilrties 1s recognised within "Trade and Other Payables” in
the statement of financial position

Subsequent measurement - Loans and borrowings

This 15 the category most relevant to the Group After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised ¢ost using the EIR method Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the habilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process

Amortsed cost 1s calculated by taking into account any discount or premuum on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation 1s included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss

This categary generally applies to interest-bearing ioans and borrowings For more information, refer to Note 19
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
1. Accounting policies {continued)
15 Financwal instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Afinancial abihity 1s derecogrised when the obligation under the lrability is discharged or cancefled or expires When
an existing financial hability 1s repiaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 15 treated as the
derecognition of the original hiability and the recogmition of a new hability The difference in the respective carrying
amounts 15 recagnised in the statement of profit or loss

1 6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost fess accumufated depreciation and accumulated impairment fosses

Where parts of an 1item of property, plant and equipment have different useful hves, they are accounted for as
separate items of property, plant and equipment

Leases in which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are
classified as leases Where land and bulldings are held under leases the accounting treatment of the land is
constdered separately from that of the buildings Leased assets acquired by way of lease are stated at an amount
equal to the fower of their fair vaiue and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the
lease, less accumulated depreciation and less accumaulated impairment losses

Under 1AS 16 sewers adopted at nil cost to the Company are included in property, plant and equipment at a fair
value, which 1s the esttmated cost of constructing the sewer at the time of adoption and depreciated at the same
rate as infrastructure assets

Depreciation 1s charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part
of an item of property, plant and equipment Land is not depreciated The estimated usefut lives are as follows

¢  Land and buildings 10 to 80 years
* |nfrastructure assets 60 to 200 years
. Plant, equipment and vehicles 2to 30 years

e Office & IT equipment 3 to 10 years

Infrastructure assets comprise 8 components

Impounding reservoirs 150 years, raw water mains 100 years, treated water mains 100 years, communication pipes
100 years, sewers 200 years, sewage pumping stations 60 years, combined sewer overflows 80 years and sea outfalls
60 years Depreciation methads, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date

1.7 intangible assets and goodwiil
Goodwilt

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating umts
and 1s not amortised but 1s tested annually for impairment

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities 1s recognssed 1n the income statement as an expense as incurred
Cther intangibie assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost Jess accumulated amortisation and less
accumulated impairment losses

Amortisation

Amortisation s charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets unless such lves are indefinite Intangible assets with an indefinite useful Iife are systematically tested for
impairment at each balance sheet date Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for
use The estimated useful lives are as follows
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Notes to the financral statements (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.7 intangible assets and goodwill {continued)

. External customer lists 10 years
. Specialised computer software 10 years
. In-house computer software development 5 years
. Other computer software development 3 years

Impairment of intangble assets

Determining whether intangible assets are iImparred requires an estimation of the value in use of those assets The
value n use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from those assets
and apply a suitable discount rate :n order to calculate the present value

1.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle
and includes expenditure tncurred m acquinng the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs in
bringing them to therr existing location and condition [n the case of manufactured inventories and work 1n progress,
cost includes an appropriate share of gverheads based on normal operating capacity

19 Impairment excluding Inventories and deferred tax assets
Financial assets (including receivables)

ECLs are recogmised in two stages For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase 1n credit
nsk since inthial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from defauit events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL} For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase In credit nisk since iitial recognition, a loss allowance 1s required for credit losses expected over the
remaining hfe of the exposure, rrespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime ECL)

For trade recewvables and contract assets that are expected to have a matunty of gne year or less, the group has
apphed the practical expedient and fallowed the simplfied approach in calculating expected credit losses (ECL)
Therefore, the group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recogruses a loss allowance based on ifetime
ECL at each reporting date

The Group assesses ECL on trade receivables using a model which reflects long-term historical cash collection trends
and assumes a consistent level of credit risk over ime The group estimates ECL based on observed collection rates,
adjusted for known changes in customer behaviour and macroeconomic conditions where relevant The model does
not rely on days past due but instead incorporates a forward-looking assessment of collectability based on historical
recovery patterns and current expectations The methodology 15 reviewed pencdically to ensure it remams
appropriate in light of emerging trends and economic developments

The assessment of the correlation between histonical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs 1s a significant estimate The amount of ECL 1s sensitive to changes in arcumstances and of forecast economic
condittons The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of econom:c conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future The information about the ECL on the Group'’s trade
tecewvables and contract assets 1s disclosed in Note 27 The group considers a financial asset i default when
contractual payments are B0 days past due However, in certamn cases, the group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the group 1s unhkely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before considering any credit enhancements heid by the group A financial
asset 1s written off when there 15 no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication of smpairment If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 1s estimated For goodwill, and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful hves or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount s estimated each year at the same time
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Notes to the financial statements (continued}

1. Accounting policies (continued)
1.9 impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets {continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 15 the greater of its value in use and its fair vaiue less
costs to sell In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset

1 10 Employee benefits
Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan The Group’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits are calculated by
estrmating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for ther service in the current and
prior periods, that benefit 15 discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets are
deducted. The Group determines the net interest on the net defined benefit iability for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined
benefit hability

The discount rate s the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at [east AA that have matunty
dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits are expected to be paid

Re-measurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuanal gains and losses and the return on plan
assets The Group recognises them immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to
defined benefit plans in employee benefit expenses in profit or loss When the benefits of a plan are changed, or
when a plan s curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the gan or loss
on curtailment, 1s recogmsed wmmediately in profit or loss when the plan amendment ar curtailment occurs

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations 1s performed by a quahfied actuary using the projected urst credit
method When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset 1s imited to the present value
of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions and takes
into account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements

The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group The scheme has been closed to new members
smce 2009

Defined contnbution plans

A defined contribution ptan 1s a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Obiigations for
contnibutions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense In the statement of profit or loss
in the periods during which services are rendered by employees

Short-term benefits

short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service 15 provided A hability 15 recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or
profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated rehably

1.11 Prowvisions

A provision 15 recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured and it 1s prabable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation Prowisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to the hability
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Notes to the financral statements (continued)
1. Accounting policies (continued]}
1.12 Revenye

Supply of water and sewerage services

The nature of the water industry m the UK1s such that revenue recognition 1s subject to a degree of estimation The
assessment of water sales to customers 1s based on internal data where final settlement data 1s not yet available At
the end of each period, amounts of water delivered ta customers are estimated and the carresponding bulled and
unbilled revenue 1s assessed and recorded in Revenue For the purpose of the judgement various factors are
considered such as seasonality, historic billing profiles, leakage data and general economic conditions

The company, under the hcense granted by the Government, has the nght to supply water and sewerage services to
customers, together with an obligation to maintain and develop the network and ensure its continued avallability
Revenue from contracts with customers 1s recogrused when control of these goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideratien to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services

For metered customers this amount s determined by the meter reading For unmetered customers, the amount to
which the Company has a right to receve 15 determined by the passage of ume during which the customer occupies
a property within the Company’s icensed region Revenue represents income recervable in the ardinary course of
business, excluding VAT, for services provided Revenue 1s recogrised to the extent that it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Company

Other Revenues
Developer Services

These are services related to the obligation under statute to allow property developers to establish an authorised
connection to the water and/or sewerage network [n obtaining the connection the developer may contribute to
the Company’s capttal costs through the following

(1) Requisttion fees for water and waste water mains

(1) Other capital contributions in refation to connecting the development to the water
and waste water mains

{in) Adoptions by the company of infrastructure buiit by the developer
{v} Infrastructure charges, being a contribution to network reinforcement
Period over which income i1s recognised

From the perspective of the Group thase activities are not separable nor disuinct and instead form a bundle of
activities necessary to establish an authorised connection from which the network access can be obtained Also,
the Company has an additional obligation under statute to keep the connection in place for all current and future
occuprers and facilitate ongoing access to the network for as long as the property requires Service Provision
Consequently, revenue from Developer Services will be deferred over the shorter of expected period of service
provision or the period to the end of the assets expected useful ife (typically in the range 60 to 200 years)

Financing Component

The proteeds do not need to be adjusted for the difference in uming of payments and recogmuon of mcome as the
timing difference does not arnise as a result of the provision of finance, but rather comes as a consequence of the
nature of the regulatory environment
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1. Accounting policies {continued)

1 12 Revenue (continued)

Renewable Obligation Certificates (ROC) and Renewable Heat Incentives {RHI1}

A subsidsary of the group generates green electricity and gas from combined heat and power plants along with the
Biomethane plants which are accredited with government incentive schemes The schemes run for twenty years
from application and are based on fixed taniffs plus inflation each year ROCs are issued monthly relating to the
supply of green electricity to the grid with meter readings and submussions subsequently checked by OFGEM
Revenue is therefore recognised in the penod to which it relates

Liquid Waste Treatment

Custorner’s waste 1s categorised as domestic or controfled The agreements for treatment of controlled waste are
short term and acceptance of all waste I1s determined by available treatment capacity at Wessex Water Services
Ltd sewage treatment works

Domestic waste has an annual fixed tarniff which has three tiers for strength of waste based on suspended solids
and chemical oxygen demand Waste 1s either measured using sludge loggers or from samples taken from the
tanker sent to Wessex Water laboratory for analysis Controlled waste 1s organic waste coming from industrial
processes such as food processing and landfill leachate Each individual waste stream 15 sampled with the
suspended solids and chemtcal oxygen demand determining a treatment charge which s agreed with the
customer

Revenue 15 recognised in the period the waste was treated, the acceptance of waste from the customer being the
fulfilment of the performance oblhigation

Property Searches

The group trades under the brand ‘Wessex Searches’ delivering the CON29DW product, a drainage and water
search Solicitors, search agencies and individuals are supphied with mapping mformation of water supply and
sewage pipes relating to an individual residential or commercial property Associated products are also procured
from third parties such as local councils, muning authority and envirenmental search providers and sold as a
package within the COND29DW product

The fee charged for these services covers a specific product supplied at a particular point with the revenue being
recognised at this point

Other General Revenues

General other revenue which includes income from related parties Is recogrised by reference to each distunct
performance abligation promised in the contract with customer Depending on the substances of the respective
contract with the customer, revenue 1s recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied, which may be at a
point in tume or over time

1.13 Contract Balances

Contract Assets

A contract asset 15 the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer If the
Group performs by transferning goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment Is due, a contract asset 1s recognised for the earned consideration that 1s conditional

Contract habilities

A contract hability 1s the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has receved
consideration {or an amount of consideration 1s due) from the customer If a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract ability 1s recogrised when the payment 15 made
or the payment 1s due {whichever is earlier} Contract labilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract
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1. Accounting pohicies {continued)

1.14 Deferred Grants and Contributions

Grants and contributions in respect of specific expenditure on non-infrastructure fixed assets are treated as a
contract hability and recogrised in the profit and loss account over the expected useful economic lives of the related
assets

Grants and contnbutions relating to mfrastructure assets are amortised over the appropnate useful economic life
(see 16)

Sewers adopted at nil cost to the group are shown in deferred income at a farr value, which 1s the estimated cost
of constructing the sewer at the time of adoption, and amortised at the same rate as infrastructure assets are
depreciated

1 15 Expenses
Lease payments

Minimum iease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding hability
‘The finance charge s aliocated to each penod dunng the lease term so as to preduce a constant perrodic rate of
Interest on the remaining balance of the liabthty Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expenses In addition, depreciation is charged on a strarght-line basis on a right-of-use asset
recognised at the inception of the lease

Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses comprise Interest payable and lease interest Borrowing costs that are directly attnibutable to
the acguission, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial t/me to be prepared for use, are
capitaiised as part of the cost of that asset Financing income comprises interest receivable on funds invested

interest iIncome and interest payable 1s recognised 1n profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method
Dividend mcome 1s recogmised in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to receive payments s
estabhished Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis

1,16 Taxation

Tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it 1s recogmised in equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or recewvable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable m respect of previous
years

Deferred tax s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and hatnlities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences are not prowided
for the initial recognttion of goodwill, the imtial recognition of assets or lrabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit other than in a business cornbination, and at the time of the transaction does not give nise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences and differences relating to investments 1n subsidiaries to the extent that they
will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future

A deferred tax asset s recognmsed only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avalable
against which the tempeorary difference can be utilised

1 17 Dividends

Dividends are proposed by the Board and immediately afterwards are authonsed by the shareholder and are
therefore recognised as a hability in the accounts until paid
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1. Accounting policies {continued)

1 18 Basis of consolidation

Subsidaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration

= Power over the investee (1 e existing nghts that give it the current abiity to direct relevant activities of investee)
= Exposure, or rights, to vanable returns from its invelvement with the investee

« The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

The acquisition date 15 the date on which control 1s transferred to the acquirer The financial statements of
subsidiantes are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-
controlling interests even If doing so causes the non-controlhing interests to have a deficit balance

Joint venture

A joint venture 1s a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture Joint control 15 the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control

The consolidated financial statements account for joint ventures using the equity method, imtially recognising the
nvestment at cost  Subsequently the carrying amount 15 adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net
assets, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that joint control
commences until the date that joint control ceases

1.19 Four volug meosurement

Fair value s the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction hetween market participants
at the measurement date The fair value measurement 1s based on the presumptton that the transaction to sell the
asset takes ptace either

* In the principal market for the asset or,
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group

The fair value of an asset 1s measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest

A fair value measurement of investment properties takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 1t to another market participant that
would use the asset in 1ts hughest and best use

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the arcumstances and for which sufficient data are
avalable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and mumimising the use of
uncbservable inputs

All assets for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 15 sigmificant to the fair value
measurement as a whole

* Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities

» Leve! 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

= Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement
15 unobservable
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
1. Accounting policies {continued)
1.19 Fair value measurement [continued)

For assets and habilities that are recogrused in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that rs significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period

1.20 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract 1s, or contains, a lease That 1, If the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Group as o lessee

The Group apphes a single recegnition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets The Group recognises lease habilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the rnight to use the underlying assets

1} Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises nght-of-use assets at the commancement date of the lease {1 e, the date the underlying asset
15 available for use) Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease habihties The cost of night-of-use assets mcludes the amount
of lease habilities recognised, initral direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received Right-of-use assets are deprecrated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows.

. Land and property 3 to 99 years
. Plant and machinery 3 to 15 years
. Motor vehicles and other equipment 3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, deprectation is calculated using the estimated useful iife of the asset The right-of-use assets
are also subject to impairment Refer to the accounting policies in sectron (1 9) Impairment of non-financial assets

n) Lease liahilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease habihties measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term The lease payments include fixed payments {including tn substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable Vanable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate imphat in the lease i1s not readily determinable After the
commencement date, the amount of lease habithties 18 increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made n addition, the carrying amount of tease habilitres s remeasured if there 1s 3 modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e g , changes to future payments resulting from a change
In an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset

The Group's lease habihities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 19)
) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (t e, those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or fess from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) It also
apphes the tease of low-value assets recognition exemption to Jeases that are low value Lease payments on short-
term feases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
1. Accounting polictes {continued)

1 20 Leases {continued)

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially ail the risks and rewards inadental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases Rental income arising 1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and 15 included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to 1ts operating nature Initial direct costs
incurred In negotiating and arranging an operating lease 1s added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental Income Contingent rents are recognised as revenue In
the pernod in which they are earned

Where the lease terms require, we maintain adequate insurance to cover all risks retained by the Group as a lessor
As a lessor, the Group does not have any items of property, plant or equipment that are subject to operating leases
1.21 Software-as-a-Service (SaaS)

SaaS arrangements are service contracts providing the Group with the right to access the cloud prowider's application
software over the contract penod Costs incurred to configure or customise, and the ongoing fees to obtain access
to the cloud provider’s application software, are recognised as operating expenses when the services are received

Some of the costs incurred relate to the development of software code that enhances or modifies, or creates
additional capability to, existing on-premise systems and meets the defimtion of, and the recognition cnitena for, an
intangible asset These costs are recognised as intangible software assets and amortised aver the useful hfe of the
software on a straight- line basis The useful lives of these assets are reviewed at least at the end of each financial
year, and any change accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate

1.22 IFRS Standards 1ssued but not effective

In Apnii 2024, the IASB 1s5ued IFRS 18, which replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements IFRS 18 introduces
new requirements for presentation within the statement of profit or loss, includmng specified totals and subtotals
Furthermore, entities are required to classify all ncome and expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one
of five categories operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations, whereof the first three
are new It also requires disclosure of newly defined management defined performance measures, subtotals of
income and expenses, and includes new requirements for aggregation and disaggregation of financial information
based on the :dentified ‘roles’ of the primary financial statements (PFS} and the notes

In addition, narrow-scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, which include changing
the starting paint for determining cash flows from operations under the indirect method, from ‘profit or loss’ to
‘operating profit or loss’ and removing the optionality around classification of cash flows frem dividends and interest
In addition, there are consequential amendments 1o several other standards IFRS 18, and the amendments to AS
7, are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, but earlier apphcation 1s permitted and
must be disclosed {FRS 18 will apply retrospectively The Group is currently working to identify all impacts the
amendments will have on the primary financial statements and notes to the financial statements

At the balance sheet date, no other Standards or interpretations were In 1ssue but not yet effective that are expected
to have a matenal impact on the Group's financial position

2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

In the prior year, the Company adopted the amendments to 1AS12 “Income Taxes” relating to “International Tax
Reform - Pillar Two Rules” issued by the Internattonal Standards Boards {IASB} in May 2023 The amendments
provide a temporary mandatory exception from recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax assets
and habilities arising from the implementation of Pillar Two model rules
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3. Busmess unit performance

Revenue
Regulated
Unregulated

Operating profit
Regulated
Unregulated

Net assets
Regulated
Unregulated

2025 2024
£m £m
940.2 794 8
62.9 691
1,003 1 8639
182.8 156 9
1.6 75
183.4 164 4
4299 446 4
150 7 154 7
580.6 6011

For management purposes, the group is orgamsed into units based on the business environment 1t operates in and

has two reportable segments, Regulated and Unreguiated

The board monitors the operating results of business umits separately for the purpose of making deaisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment Business unit performance is evaluated based on a combination
of Revenues, Operating profit and Net asset value and 1s measured consistently with the consolidated financiaf

statements
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4. Revenue from contracts with customers

Non-
Current year House- house-
hold
hold Total
£m £m f£m
Wholesale revenue - Water Supply
Unmeasured 587 97 68.4
Measured 1203 182.1 302.4
1790 191.8 370.8
Wholesale revenue - Waste Water
Unmeasured 116.1 53.1 169.2
Measured 238 6 1475 3B86.1
3547 200.6 555.3
Other revenue
Regulated 14.1
Unregulated 629
Total revenue 1,003.1
House- Non-
Prior year hold house-
hold Total
fm £m £m
Wholesale revenue - Water Supply
Unmeasured 544 90 634
Measured 986 155 4 254 0
1530 164 4 3174
Wholesale revenue - Waste Water
Unmeasured 105 7 430 148 7
Measured 1961 1227 3188
3018 165 7 467 5
Other revenue
Regulated 99
Unregulated 691

Total revenue 8639
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Notes to the financial statements {contiued)
4. Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

In accordance with IFRS 15, revenue has been disaggregated based an what 1s recogmised in relation to the
core services of supplying clean water and the removing and treating of wastewater Each of these services 1s
deemed to give nise to a distinct performance obfigation under the contract with customers, though
following the same pattern of transfer to the customer who simultaneously receives and consumes both of
these services over time Residential retail revenues relate solely to the margin applied to the wholesale
amounts charged to residential customers The wholesale charges and retail margin are combined in arriving
at the total revenues relating to water and wastewater services provided to household customers

Other revenues comprise a number of regulated and non-regulated income streams including those
described in note 1 12

Controct balances

Contract assets of £6 5m (2024 £5 8m, see Note 17) are included in the statement of financial positian under
trade and other recevables At the year-end there were habilities for contract habiities for receipts in advance
relating to contracts of £91 1m (2024 £89 4m, see Note 20)

5. Operating costs and auditor’s remuneration

included in the income statement are the following

2025 2024
£m £m
Employee costs {(note 6) 187.1 183 4
Power 559 585
Raw Materials and consumables 276 3 2323
Rates 26.1 224
Expected credit loss charge 270 233
Service charges 107 65
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 1277 1185
Depreciation of right of use assets (note 11) 14 03
Amortisation of intangible assets {note 13) 120 98
Net loss on derecognition of intangible assets (note 13} 14.3 42
Property, plant and equipment written off — disposals 14 19
Short-term lease expense (note 11) le3 172
Infrastructure maintenance expenditure 219 194
Ofwat licence fee 20 20
Other operating costs 1738 1251
9539 8312
Own work capitalised {126 5) (127 2)
8274 704 0

Other income
{Gan) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (4 6) {14)
Amortisation of deferred income {note 22) (3.1) {31}
Property damage compensation (14) -

(91} (45)
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)}

5. Operating costs and auditor’s remuneration {continued)

Other operating costs consist of costs not falfing into any of the above categories, such as, transport,
insurance, IT, rent or hired staff Own work capitahsed relates to costs transferred to assets under
construction

2025 2024
N £000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's guditor for
Audit of these parent and consolidated financial statements 57 5%
Audit of the Company’s subsidianes 452 472
Audit related assurance services 181 140
Other non-audit services 109 188
794 856

Audit-related assurance services are In connection with the Group's regulatory reporting requirements for
Ofwat The non-audit services include £109,200 relating to bond 155uances

6 Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including directors)
during the year, analysed by category was as follows

Number of employees

2025 2024
Water and sewerage services 2,908 2,936
Water retail services 75 374
Operations and maintenance contracts 175 153
Other 36 130
3,194 3,593
2025 2024

The aggregate payrolt costs (including directors remuneration) were as
fm £m

follows
Wages and salaries 1514 149 3
Sociaf security costs 17.0 161
Pension costs - defined contnibution 13.1 121
Pension costs - defined benefit 56 59
1871 834
7. Directors’ remuneration

2025 2024
£'000 £'000
Total Directors’ remuneration including benefits in kind 218 435

Remuneration of highest paid Director 140 313
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
7 Directors’ remuneration {continued)
Detalls of Directors’ remuneration can be found in the Directors’ Report Directors’ remuneration is in respect of

three Executive Directors and five YTL appointed Directors (2024 three Executive Directors and five YTL appointed
Directors}

8 Finance income and expense

Recognised in the income statement

2025 2024
£m £m
Finance income
Interest receivable on deposits 38 51
fnterest receivable on amounts owed by immediate holding company 5.7 61
Gain on short term finanoial instrument - 13
Net interest on net defined benefit pension plan surplus 0.3 07
98 132
Finance expense
Interest on bonds (136 3) (165 5)
Interest on bank loans {39.6) (36 5)
Interest expense on |eases (02) -
interest payable before capitalisation {176.1}) {202 0}
Interest capitalised 217 16 2
Netinterest payable (154 4) (185 8)

In accordance with IAS 23 borrowing costs of £21 7m {2024 £16 2m) associated with the funding of eligible capital
projects have been capitalised at an interest rate of 5 4% (2024 6 8%)

9, Taxation

Recogmised in the income statement

2025 2024
£m fm

Current taxation
UK Corporation tax 12 c6
UK Corporation {ax adjustments to pnor penods 0.2 {05)
14 01

Deferred toxation
Ansing from origination and reversal of temporary differences 100 {41)
Arising from previously unrecognised tax loss, tax credit or temporary

difference of pnior penods 01 (3 8)

101 {79)

Tax expense/{credit) in the income statement 11.5 (7 B)
Taxation recogmsed in other comprehensive income

2025 2024

£m £m

Remeasurements of defined benefit surplus {1.4) 16

Tax expense (14} 16
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9 Taxation {continued)

feconciliation of effective tax rate

2025 2024

£m £m
Profit/{loss) for the year 28.3 {04)
Tota! tax expense/{credit) 115 (7 8)
Profit/{loss) excluding taxation 39.8 (8 2)
Corporation tax at standard rate 10.0 (20)
Increase from effect of expenses not deductible in determining

2.4 17
taxable profit {tax loss)
Adjustment 1n respect of prior periods 0.3 {4 3)
Other tax effects for reconciliation between accounting profit and (0.1) (01)
tax iIncome
Group relef for nil consideration {1.1) (3 1}
Tax expense/(credit) in the Income statement 115 (7 8)

The statutory rate of corporation tax was 25% for both the current and prior period

As a result of the Full Expensing regime, the Group has generated current year tax losses which have been
recognised as a deferred tax asset and offset aganst the existing deferred tax hiabilities

The BEPS Pillar Two Minimum Tax legislation was enacted in July 2023 in the UK with effect from financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2024 The Group has applied the temporary exception under IAS 12 in relation
to the accounting for deferred taxes arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two rules The June 2025 tax
charge daes not include a current charge relating to Pillar 2 income taxes
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
10. Dividends

The dividend policy 15 to declare dividends consistent with the Group’s performance and prudent management of
the economic risk of the business

2025 2024

£m £m

Intenim dividends for the current year 505 597
Final dividend for the current year 23 183
52.8 780

Dividend payments are reviewed and approved on a quarterly basis by the Board after taking into account both
current and projected busimness performance In particular the Board takes into account

. the group’s current and projected performance in delivering the level of service customers expect from an
efficrent water and sewerage company and that where that leve! of service has not been delivered, that
customers have been adequately compensated

. that the group s delivering the required quality and environmental outputs and makmg sufficient
Investment in its infrastructure to maintain and, where necessary, increase resilience

. that appropriate payments have been made and can continue to be made tnto the group’s final salary
pension scheme as agreed with the scheme’s trustees

. that the ¢correct amount of tax has been paid

. that the group has met any unexpected additional expenditure needs that may have arisen during the year
to date, as new operational risks emerge

. the level of regulatory gearing and 1ts comparison with Ofwat's expectations pertaining at the time

. suffictency of distributable reserves

The group will matntain a solid investment grade credit rating at all tmes

Ouring the year the company recewved dividends of £51 8m {2024 £78 Om) from subsidiary companies within the
Group

11, Leases

Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property, plant, machinery, vehicles and other equipment used
In Its operations Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease terms between 3 and 15 years, while motor
vehicles and other equipment generaily have lease terms between 3 and 4 years The Group's obligations under its
leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and
varizble lease payments, which are further discussed below

The Group also has certain leases of machiery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment
with low value The Group applies the ‘shaort-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for
these leases Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during
the period
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11.  Leases (continued)
Land & Plant & Motor
buildings equtpment  vehicles Total
£m £fm £m £m
Cost or valuation
Balance at 1 July 2023 20 02 11 33
Additions 0s - 16 21
Balance at 30 June 2024 25 02 27 54
Balance at 1 July 2024 25 02 27 5S4
Additions - 07 30 37
Terminations - - (0 4) (04)
Balance at 30 June 2025 25 09 53 87
Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2023 {01) (01} {0 3) {0 5)
Charge for the year (0 3) {0 1) (05) (0 9)
Balance at 30 June 2024 {0 4) {02} {0 8) {14)
Balance at 1 July 2024 {0 4) {02) (0 8) (14)
Charge for the year {02) o1 {11) (14)
Eliminated on termination - - 03 03
Balance at 30 June 2025 {0 6} (G 3) (16} (2 5}
Net Book Value
At 1 july 2023 19 01 08 28
At 30 June 2024 21 - 19 40
At 30 June 2025 19 06 3.7 62

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease habilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings)
and the movements during the year

2025 2024
£fm £m

As at 1 July 3.9 29
Additions 4.0 18
Accretion of interest 0.2 -
Terminated (13) {02}
Payments {0.8) (0 6)
As at 30 June 60 39
Current Note 19 16 a8
Non-current Note 18 44 31
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11. Leases {continued)
The maturity analysis of lease habilities is also disclosed 1n Note 19

The following are the amounts recogrised In profit or loss

Depreciation expense of right-of use assets
Interest expense on lease habilities
Expenses relating to short-term leases

2025 2024
£Em £m
14 09
0.2 -

16.3 172

17.9 181

The Group had total cash outflows for long-term leases of £0 8m in 2025 (2024 £0 6m) Cash outflows for short-
term and low-value leases were £16 3m {2024 £17 2m} The Group also had non-cash additions to night-of-use

assets and [ease habilittes of £4 Om in 2025 {2024 £1 8m)

Group Gs a lessor

The Group has entered into operating leases consisting of certain land and builldings Rental income recognised by

the Group during the year 15 £0 7m (2024 £0 7m)

Future mimimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June 2025 are as follows

2025 2024

£m £m

whthin one year 03 04
After one year but not more than five years 09 10
More than five years 0.7 0%
19 23
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12 Praperty, plant and equipment — Group

Infra- Assets
Land &  structure Plant & Motor Office & IT under
buildings assets equipment vehicles equipment construction Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m fm
Cost
Balance at 1 july 2023 1,068 6 2,508 3 2,093 8 48 ¢ 49 2 2292 5,897 1
Additions 01 209 01 - - 407 5 428 6
Disposals (32) {02) {22 1) (37) - - {29 2}
Transfers on commisstoning 270 536 B6 5 77 65 {181 3) -
Balance at 30 June 2024 1,092 5 2,5826 2,158 3 520 557 4554 6,396 5
Balance at 1 July 2024 1,092 5 2,5826 2,158 3 520 557 455 4 6,396 5
Additions - . - - - 4209 4209
Disposals {9 0) {02) {18 1} (6 9) - - (34 2)
Transfers on commissioning 676 854 1921 63 78 (359 2} -
Balance at 30 June 2025 1,1511 2,667 8 2,3323 514 635 5171 6,783 2
Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2023 (370 5) (192 2) (1,168 5) {29 4) (23 6) - {1,794 2)
Charge for the year (17 6) (19 3) (70 1) (57) (5 8) - (118 5)
Disposals 16 - 227 30 - - 273
Balance at 30 June 2024 (386 5) {211 5) {1,215 9} {321} {39 4) - {1,885 4)
Balance at 1 July 2024 (386 5) {211 5) {1,215 9) {32 1) (39 4) - {1,885 4)
Charge for the year {18 3} (19 1) {77 8} {6 5) (6 0} - {127 7}
Disposais 59 - 165 55 - - 283
Balance at 30 June 2025 (398 9) {230 6) (1,276 8} {331} {45 4) - (1,984 8)
Net Book Value
At 1 july 2023 698 1 23161 92513 186 156 2292 4,202 9
) At 30 June 2024 706 0 2,3711 942 4 199 163 455 4 45111
At 30 June 2025 7522 2,437 2 1,055 5 183 181 517.1 4,798.4

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems of mains and sewers, iImpounding and pumped raw water
storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelines, sea outfalls and infrastructure investigations and studies

There are no impairment losses recogmised 1n these financial statements
Cumulfative borrowing costs capitahsed and included above were £71 Om (2024 £49 3m)

Included 1 freehold land and bulldings above is an amount of £16 Om (2024 £15 7m) in respect of land which 1s
not depreciated
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13, Intangible assets - Group
External  Contractual Other
Customer Trading Intangible Software
Goodwill Lists Rights assets Software development Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £fm
Cost or valuation
Balance at 1 July 2023 04 21 44 22 732 226 104 9
Additions - - - - - 73 73
Disposals - - - - - - -
Imparrment - - - - - {(42) (42)
Transfer on Commissioning - - 107 {10 7) -
Balance at 30 June 2024 04 21 44 22 839 150 108 ¢
Balance at 1 July 2024 04 21 44 2.2 839 150 108 0
Transfer between categories - - - (2 2) 22 - -
Additions - - - - - 149 149
Disposals - - - - {17) {14 0) {15 7)
Transfer on commussioning - - 100 {10 0} -
Balance at 30 June 2025 a4 21 a4 - 94 4 59 107 2
Amortisation
Balance at 1 July 2023 (0 4) (0 8) 27 {13) {44 5) - (49 7)
Charge for the year - {02) {03) {02) {91) - {9 8}
Eliminated on disposal - - - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2024 {0 4) (10) (30 (15) {53 6) - {59 5)
Balance at 1 July 2024 (0 4) {10) (30) {15) (53 8} - {59 5)
Transfer hetween categories - - - 1% (15) - -
Amortisation charge for the
year - {02) (03) . (11 5) - {12 0)
Eliminated on disposal - - - 14 - 14
Balance at 30 June 2025 (04) (12} {3 3) a0 {65 2) - {70 1)
Net Book Vatue ’
At 1July 2023 13 17 09 287 226 552
At 30 June 2024 - 11 14 07 303 150 48 5
At 30 June 2025 - 09 1.1 0.0 292 5.9 37.1

In 2024, an impairment loss of £4 2m was recogrused due to delays in the completion of internally developing a
new Biling and Customer service platform In assessing impairment, management estimated the recoverable
amount based on expected future cash flows and used an appropnate discount rate of 4 45% based on the Group's

cost of capital

After assessing the most effective way to complete the project, the Group has made the decisien to transitton to a
Software as a Service (5aa$) solution Therefore, in the current year the asset was derecognised resulting in a net
loss of £14 Om, as future economic benefits are no longer expected from the use of the asset
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14, Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

The Group and Company have the following investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

2025 2024
Country Number Principal activity Shares held
% %

Company - substdiary
Waessex Water Services Ltd United Kingdom 02366648 ::::fc reiuPp‘y and waste water £1 ordinary 100 100
Water 2 Business Ltd United Kingdom 08518831 | Billing services £1 ordinary 70 70
Wessex Water Enterpnises Ltd Umited Kingdom 02279151 ::::tenr‘:::eranon and waste £1 orcinary 100 100
Turnbull Infrastructure & Utilities Ltd United Kingdom 03652435 | Engineering services £1 ordinary 100 100
SC Technology GmbH Switzerland - investment holding CHF ordinary 100 100
Entrade Ltd United Xingdom 13829768 | Environmental ¢onsulting £1 ordinary 80 100
pressex water Pension Scheme United Kingdom | 03913589 | Darmant £1 ordinary 100 100
Wessex Water Trustee Company Ltd United Kingdom 02278257 | Dormant £1 ordmnary 100 100
Y7L Services Ltd United Kingdom 02277608 | Darmant £1 ordinary 100 100
Company — joint venture
Bristol Wessex Billing Services Ltd United Kingdom 04143955 | Billing services €1 A ordmary S0 50
Groug - subsidiary
Wessex Water Services Finance PLC United Kingdom 03704265 | Issue of bonds £1 ordinary 100 100
GENeco Ltd United Kingdom 06842738 | Food waste treatment £1 ardinary 100 100
GENeco South West Lwd United Kingdom 09326393 | Food waste treatment £1 ordinary 100 100
wessex Utlity Sofutions Ltd United Kingdom 06718997 Engineering services £1 ordinary 100 100
SC Technology Nederlands BV Netherlands - Waste treatment Euro ordinary 100 100
SC Technology Dautschand GmbH Germany - Waste treatment Euro ordinary 100 100
Group - joint venture
Searchlight Collections Ltd United Kingdom 07940022 | Billing services £1 ordinary 50 50

On 12 February 2025 the Group disposed of 20% of its sharehoiding in EnTrade Ltd at its nominai value

The registered address of the England & Wales subsidiary companies 1s Wessex Water Operations Centre,
Claverton Down Road, Bath, BA2 7WW apart from Water 2 Business Ltd which is 21e Somerset Square, Nallsea,
Bristo) BS48 1RQ SCT Technology GmbH registered office 1s Schwaresterstrasse 2, CH-5604 Hendschiken,
Switzerland SCT Technology Nederlands 8V registered office 1s Postbus 7564, 8903IN Leeuwarden, Netherlands
and SCT Technology Deutschland GmbH registered office 1s Breite Str 10, 40670 Meerbusch, Germany

Bristol Wessex Billing Services Ltd 1s considered a Joint Venture because Wessex Water Ltd and Bristol Water
Holdings Ltd each hold 50% of the equity share capital and voting nghts of the company and as a result, it has no
single controlling party The registered address 1s 1 Clevedon Walk, Nailsea, Bristol BS48 1WA

Searchlight Collections Ltd 15 constdered a Joint Venture because it 15 a 100% owned subsidiary of Bristol Wessex

Billing Services Ltd The registered address 1s PO Box 930, Galmington Trading Estate, Cornishway West, Taunton,
Somerset TA1 SLQ
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14. Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures {continued)

Under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006, Wessex Water Limited gives a parent company guarantee i respect
of all eutstanding habilities as at 30 June 2025, until the Liabilities are satisfied in full, for the following subsidiary
companies Under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, the following subsidiaries are therefore exempt from
the requirements relating to the audit of individual accounts

GENeco Limrted 06842738
GENeco (South West) Limited 09326393
Wessex Utility Solutions Limsted 06718997
Entrade Limited 13829768

Summary aggregated financial information on joint venture

2025 2024
£m fm
Bristol Wessex Billing Services Ltd
Assets 14 17
Liabilities (1.3) (17}
Profit/(loss) 0.1 B
Investment in Subsidiaries - Company
2025 2024
£m Em
Carrying value at 1 fuly 81.4 Bl14
Additional equity investment 2.5 -
Carrying value at 30 June 839 814
15. Non-Current Financial Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit and
Group Company
loss
2025 2024 2025 2024
Non-listed equity investments £m £m £m £Em
industnial Phycology Ltd - 01 - -
Inheriting Earth Ltd 0.1 04 - -
01 05 - -
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Owed by i/mmedate holdng company 974 977 97 4 977
Owed by subsidiary companies - - 307 308
Owed by other group comparies 41 - 38 -
1015 977 1319 1285
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

15 Non-Current Financial Assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include equity shares of non-listed companies The Group holds

nan-controlling interests (between 4% and 8%} 1n these companies The Group consider these mvestments to be

strategic in nature

During the year, a revaluation foss of £0 4m on the iInvestments was reported (2024 no gainfioss}

16. Inventories

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress

Group
2025 2024
£m £m
81 74
- 10
81 84

Raw matenals, consumables and work in progress reccgnised as cost of sales in the year amounted to £8 9m
(2024 £9 1m)} There was no write-down of inventories to net realisable value in either year

17. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
£m £m £m Em
Amounts receivable from customers 248.0 2287 2.6 31i
Owed by subsidiary companies - - 2.5 188
Owed by other group companies - 40 - 37
Owed by Joint ventures 09 08 - -
Prepayments 273 287 - -
VAT debtors 77 121 - -
Contract assets 65 58 - -
Other debtors 89 159 - 35
299.3 297 0 51 291

Contract assets relate to recoverable amounts from other revenues compnising a number of smaller non-core

income streams

Amounts recervable from customers are expected to be recovered in no mare than 12 months (see note 26b)

All autstanding related party receivable balances are owed on commercial terms and arise through normal
business operations The Group has considered the present value of the contractual cash flows and compared this
to a prudent assessment of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received Having
performed this assessment, the Group has determined that no material expected credit loss allowance 1s required

as at year-end for related party balances owed
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

17.  Trade and other recewvables (continued)

Contract assets - Group

2025 2024
£m £m
Balance at 1 July 58 63
Additions 8.0 53
Utiisations (7.3} (S 8}
Balance at 30 June 65 S8
18. Cash, overdrafts and other financial assets
Group Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
£m Em £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term bank deposits 300 - - -
Cash at bank 251 56 - 02
Cash and cash equivalents in current assets 55.1 56 - 02
Bank overdraft (1.5) (10 4) {1.4) -
Cosh and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 53.6 (4 8) (14) 02
Other financial assets
Deferred consideration on disposal of subsidiary - 10 - 10
Medium-term bank deposits 500 - - -
500 10 - 10

The Group and the Company seek 1o 1nvest cash and cash equivalents safely and profitably with creditworthy local
and offshore licensed banks The local and offshore licensed banks used have credit ratings of A1/P1 as rated by
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc Medium term bank deposits are those with a maturity of between 90 and 365 days

19. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group and Company’s interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, which are measured at amortuised cost For more information about the Group and Company’s exposure
to interest rate and foreign currency sk, see note 26e
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19. Dther interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Group Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
£m £m £m £m
Current habilities
Bank foans and facilities 142 3 106 4 92 403
Other loans - 88 - -
Current pertion of long-term lease 16 08 i i
habilities
Financing overdraft 23 - - -
Loan from parent company 33 33 33 33
149.5 115 3 125 436
Naon-current liabilities
Bank loans 255.1 508 6 36.2 72
Other loans 78 - - -
Lease habilities 44 31 . .
Bonds 3,1454 2,5139 - -
3,4127 3,0256 3612 72
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19. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings {continued)

Terms and debt repayment schedule

Short-term borrowing
Loan from parent

EIB Loans

Kfw Bank Loan £200m
Financing overdraft
Revolving credit facilities
Long-term borrowing
KfW Bank [oan £75m
Natwaest Bank loan
£150m

Natwest Bank loan
£12 5m

Other loans

Revolving credit facilities
Listed bonds

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index tinked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond
Index Linked Bond

The principal borrowsng facilities are subject to covenants that are measured quarterly, being an interest cover
{excluding tndexation) of no less than 2 75x and net debt to regulatory capital value of no more than 75%, based

Currency

Sterhng
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling

Sterling
Sterling

Sterling

Sterhng
Sterling

Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterhng
Sterling
Sterling
Sterling
Sterhng

Nominal
interest
rate

0 00%
6 45%
549%
53%
5 326%

5 46%
542%

562%

497%
4 85%

5 38%
575%
150%
125%
513%
6 50%
6 50%
& 50%
6 50%
6 13%
6 50%
2159%
175%
175%
137%
137%
149%
150%
150%

on measures as defined in the facilities agreements

Year of
matunty

2026
2025
2026
2025
2025

2029
2032

2027

2028
2027

2028
2033
2029
2036
2032
2033
2035
2038
2043
2034
2040
2039
2046
2051
2057
2057
2058
2058
2058

Issue Carrying Carrying
Value amount Issue Value amount
2025 2025 2024 2024
fm £m £m fm
3.2 33 33 33
- - 2000 S00
200.0 127.8 1600 1435
23 23 - -
92 9.2 278 278
750 74.6 750 74 3
1500 1496 1500 1497
125 125 125 125
7.8 7.8 88 88
23.7 23.7 1572 157 2
200.0 1997 2000 1996
350.0 347.1 3500 346 9
2500 2489 2500 2486
3000 296 3 3000 2959
3000 297.4 3000 2971
350 33,8 350 348
35.0 347 ELY ) 347
650 6412 650 642
65.0 64 6 650 64 6
3500 3442 - -
2500 2457 - -
50.0 925 500 896
715.0 148.4 750 1419
75.0 148 4 750 1419
750 148 4 750 1419
75.0 148 4 750 1419
500 939 500 901
500 939 500 901
50.0¢ 93.9 50 ¢ 901
3,183.7 3,556.2 2,854 6 3,141 0

All bonds are listed on the London Stock Exchaznge and are wholly guaranteed by Wessex Water Services Ltd
Interest 1s payable based on the nominal interest rate as disclosed tndex-linked bonds increase in value annually in
line with the Retail Prices Index

Non-financing bank overdrafts and leases are excluded from this schedule
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19. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Lease habihties
Lease hiabilities are payable as fallows

Minimum Minimum
lease Interest Principal lease Interest Principal
payments payments
2025 2025 2025 2024 2024 2024
fm £m £m £m £m
Less than one year ) 1.8 {0.2) 1.6 08 - 08
Between 1 and 5 years 3.8 [0 6) 32 21 {01) 2.0
More than 5 years 16 {0.4) 1.2 17 {0 6) 11
7.2 (1.2) 6.0 46 {07) 39
Changes in hobiities ansing from financing activities
Group 1 July 2024 Cash New Other 30 June
flows leases 2025
£m £m £m £m £m
Current interest bearing loans and 118 5 (68 8) A 98 7 147.9
borrowings {excluding items listed below)
Current obligations under leases and hire 08 (0 8) 09 07 16
purchase contracts
Non-current interest bearing loans and 30225 4437 ) 56 9) 3,408 3
borrowings {excluding stems histed below)
Non-current obligations under leases and 31 _ 31 (18) 44
hire purchase contracts
3,144.9 3731 40 40.2 3,562.2
Interest Accrued under Trade and other 53.9 (125.3) ) 1341 627
payables
Tota) habilities from financing actvities 3,198.8 247.8 4.0 1743 3,624.9
Group 1 July 2023 Cash New leases Other 30 June
flows 2024
fm £m £m £m £m
Current interest bearing loans and
7 3149 - 1737 1185
borrowings (excluding items hsted below} 259 ( )
Current obligations under leases and hire 06 (0 6) 04 04 08
purchase contracts
MNon-current interest bearing loans and 2703 5 409 0 ) (90 0} 3,0225
borrowings (excluding items listed below)
Non-current obligations under leases and 53 ) 14 06) 31
hire purchase contracts
2,966 1 935 18 835 3,144 9
Interest Accrued under Trade and other 41.2 (105 0) i 117 7 539
payables
Total habihties from financing activities 3,007 3 {11 5} 18 2012 3,198 8
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19. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings {continued)

The ‘Other’ column includes the effect of reclassification of the non-current portion of interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, including obhigations under leases and hire purchase contracts to current due to the passage of ime
and the effect of accrued but not yet pard interest on interest-bearing loans and borrowings The group classifies

interest pand as cash flows from financing activities

Company

Current interest bearing loans and borrowings

Non-current interest bearing loans and
borrowings

Interest Accrued under Trade and other payables

Total habiities from financing actwities

Company

Current interest bearing loans and borrowings

Non-current interest bearing loans and
borrowings

Interest Accrued under Trade and other payables

Total habihties from financing activities

1 July Cash New Other 30 June
2024 flows leases 2025
£m £m £m £fm £m
43 6 (41) (27 0) 125
72 20 270 362
50.8 (2.1) - 48 7
02 {02) 02 02
510 {23) 0.2 48.9
1July Cash New Other 30 June
2023 flows leases 2024
£m £m £m £m £m
110 - 326 436
399 01 {328} 72
509 01 {0 2) 508
03 {23) 22 Q2
51.2 (22) 20 510
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20. Trade and other payabies

Group Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
£m £m £m Em
Current
Owed 1o subsidiary companies - - 81 131
Owed to other group companies 16.3 - - -
Trade payables 311 455 03 03
Dividend 23 183 23 183
Other creditors 108 10.5 - 06
Taxation and social secunity 47 39 0.5 05
Accrued expenses 1333 1480 0.4 06
Contract kabilities 8513 837 1.0 -
283.8 3099 226 394
Non-current
Contract habthities 58 57 - -
289.6 3156 22.6 394

Accrued expenses includes capital aceruals of £21 Om (2024 £50 2m) and interest accruals of £62 7m (2024

£53 9m} The remainder of the balance masnly consists of accruals for other operating costs

Our standard payment terms for trade payabtes is end of month plus 30 days Corporation tax is paid quarterly,

other taxation 15 normally payable within one month

Analysis of contract
hiabiiities

At 1 July
Deferred during the year
Recognised as revenue during the year

At 30 June

2025 2024
£m £m
894 83g
897 89.2
(88.0) (83 )
91.1 894

The contract labilities within current payables all relate to performance obligations due to be settled within the
followng 12 months Non-current contract liabilities relate to performance obligations due to be settled over a 15

year period from June 2016
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

21. Retirement henefits

Pension Plans

Defined Benefit Plans

2025 2024

£m £m

Fair value of scheme assets 542.8 5746
Present value of defined benefit obligations (531.1) (568 7)
Net surplus for defined benefit obligatians 17 59
Unfunded and compensatory added years pension (0 8) (07
111 52

Total retirement benefits

The Group sponsors a funded defined benefit pension plan for quahfying UK employees The plan is admimstered by
a separate board of Trustees which s legally separate from the Group The Trustees are composed of representatives
of both the employer and employees The Trustees are required by law to act in the interest of all relevant
beneficiaries and are responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets plus the day to day
adrministration of the benefits

Under the plan, employees are entitled to annual pensions on retirement using an accrual rate, final pensionable
salary and service Benefits are also payable on death and following ather events such as withdrawing from active
service No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employeas

Liabilivies for an unfunded arrangement and a compensatory payment for added years’ service are held outside the
defined benefit scheme The Group also operates a defined contribution section wathin the main pension scheme

a Profite of the 5cheme

The Defined Benefit Obligation {DBO}includes benefits for current employees, former employees, and current
pensioners Broadly, about 23% of the DBO 1s atirtbutable to current employees, 13% to deferred pensioners
and 64% to current pensioners

The scheme duration is an indicator of the weighted-average time until benefit payments are made For the
scheme as a whole, the durationis approximately 12-13 years, reflecting the appropnate spht of defined benefit
obligation between current employees (duration of c18-19 years), deferred members (duration of ¢17-18
years) and current pensioners (duratron of ¢10-11 years}

b Funding regquirements

UK legislation regutres that penston schemes are funded prudently The last funding valuation of the scheme
was carried out by a quabfied actuary as at 30 September 2022 and showed a deficit of £35 3m The company
was not required 1o pay any defiot contnbutions during the year due to improvements in the scheme’s funding
posttion which have put it inte a surplus postion No company defioit contributions are due during the period
1 July 2025 to 30 June 2026 The next funding valuation 15 due no later than 30 September 2025

The company also pays contributions of 15 5% of pensianable salaries in respect of current accrual and non-
investment related expenses
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21.

[

Retirement benefits {continued)

Risks associated with the Scheme

Asset volatility - The habtlities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference ta corparate bond yields,
if assets underperform this yield, this will create a defiat The Scheme holds a significant proportion of growth
assets (equities including a diversified growth fund and a global abselute return fund) which, though expected
to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term, create volatiity and nisk in the short-term The allocation to
growth assets s monitored to ensure it remains appropriate given the Scheme's long-term objectives

Changes 1in bond yields - A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the Scheme's
habities for accounting purposes, aithough this wiif be partially offset by an increase in the value of the
Scheme’s bond holdings

Inflation risk - The majority of the Scheme’s benefit obligations are linked to inflation and higher inflation will
tead to higher hiabilities (although, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to
protect against extreme inflation) The majority of the assets are etther unaffected by or only loasely correlated
with inflation, meantng that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit

tife expectancy - The majority of the Scheme’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member,
so increases in ife expectancy will result in an increase in the habihties

The Trustees insure certain benefits payable on death before retirement

Reporting at 30 June 2025

The results of the latest funding vatuation at 30 September 2022 have been adjusted to the balance sheet date
taking account of experience over the period since 30 September 2022, changes in market conditions, and
differences in the financial and demographtc assumptions The present value of the defined benefit obligation,
and the related current service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Cost Method

The principal assumptions used to calculate the hiabilities under 1AS 19 are set out below The major
assumptions used by the actuary were
30.06 25 3006 24

Rate of increase in salaries - long term 170% 190%
Rate of increase in pensions

- WWPS and 1/80ths members 2.70% 250%
- MIS members 230% 2 60%
- Reduced level members 1 90% 2 00%
- Post88GMP 1 90% 2 10%
Discount rate 5 60% 510%
Inflation assumption — RPI 2 80% 3 10%
Inflation assumption — CPl 2.30% 2 60%
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

21. Retirement benefits {continued)

Mortality assumptions
The mortalty assumptions are based upon the recent actual mortality experience of Scheme members and
allow for expected future improvements in mortality rates

2025 2025 2024 2024
' Male Female Male Female

years years years years
Life expectancy - current age 60 253 28.2 254 282
Life expectancy - current age 40 46.6 45 4 46 6 494

The mortality table adopted 1s based upon 105% of standard tables S3P{M/F)A adjusted to aliow for individual years
of birth Future \improvements are assumed to be tn line with the CMI 2023 praojection, with z long-term
improvement rate of 1 0% p a for all members

Sensitivity analysts

The key assumptions used for 1AS 18 are discount rate, inflation and mortahty If different assumptions are used,
this could have a matenal effect on the results disclosed The sensitivity of the results to these assumptions are set
out below For the purposes of these sensitivities 1t has been assumed that the change in the discount rate and
mflation has nompact on the value of Scheme assets

* A reduction in the discount rate of 0 1% would increase the scheme habiities by £6 7m from £531 1m to
£537 8m, reducing the scheme surplus to £5 Om

*+  An increase In the inflation assumption of 0 1% would increase the scheme habihties by £6 7m from
£531 1m to £537 8m, reducing the scheme surplus to £5 Om

*+  Anincrease in Iife expectancy of 1 year would increase the scheme hiabihties by £15 7m from £531 1m to
£546 8m, resulting in a net defiot of £4 Om

e The value of the assets as follows

2025 2024

£fm £m

Equities 151.8 1590
Property 362 341
Government Bonds 332 850
Corporate Bonds 309.7 3294
Other 11,9 71
5428 574 6

All assets are quoted in an active market except those classed as “Other”
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21. Retirement benefits (continued)

f The amounts recognised i comprehensive income

2025 2024
£Em £m

Qperating cost — service cost
Current service cost 4.7 49
Administrative expenses paid 1.0 12
Past service cost - 072)
Financing cost
Net interest expense {03) {07)
Pension expense recognised in Income Statement 54 52
Re-measurements in OCl
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 350 (16}
income
Actuanal (gains)/losses ansing from changes in financial (50.0) 16
assumptions
Actuarral (gains} arising from changes i demographic (1.0) (26)
assumptions
Actuarial losses due to hiability experience 10.4 90
(Gains)/tosses recognised in OCI (5 6) 64
(Gains)/losses recognised in Income Statement and OCI (0 2) 116
g Changes to the present value of the defined benefit
obligations during the year

2025 2024

£m £m

Present value at start of year 568 7 5564
Current service cost 47 49
interest expense on defined benefit obligation 28 4 283
Actuarial {gains)/losses ansing from changes in financial {50 0) 16
assumptions
Actuarial {gains) ansing from changes \n demographic (1.0) (26)
assumptions
Actuanal losses due to iability expenence 104 90
Net benefits paid out (30.1) {28 7}
Past service cost (including curtaiments) - (02)

Present value at end of year 531.1 568 7
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
21. Retirement benefits {continued)

h Changes to the fair value of scheme assets duning the year

2025 2024
£m £m
Fair value at start of year 574.6 5680
Interest iIncome on scheme assets 287 290
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest (35.0) 16
income
Contnbutions by employer 56 59
Net benefits paid out (3G 1) (28 7) r
Administration costs incurred (1.0) (12)
Fair value at end of year 542.8 574.6
Additional analysis 2025 2024
£m £m
Actual return on scheme assets
Interest income on scheme assets 28.7 290
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts tncluded in interest (35 0) 16
income
Actual return on scheme assets {6 3} 306

Defined contribution plans

The Group also operates a defined contribution section within the main pension scheme During the year the
Group paid £13 1m (2024 £12 1m) to the defined contribution section and at 30 June 2025 owed £0 9m (2024
£14m)

Virgin Media vs NTL Case

In June 2023, the UK High Court in Virgin Media Limited v NTL Pension Trustees Il Limited ruled that specific
historical amendments to contracted-out defined benefit schemes in the period from & Aprnil 1997 to 5 Apnl 2016
were invalid if they lacked a confirmation under section 37 of the Penston Schemes Act 1993 from the scheme’s
actuary This decision was upheld on appealin July 2024

A high-level review of relevant deeds relating to the defined benefit pension scheme sponsored by the Group has
been undertaken in collaboration with the pension scheme Trustee At the date of the appraval of these financtal
statements, this review had not given rise to any areas of concern

The DWP statement published on 5 June 2025, gives clarity for the Trustee and Group as scheme sponsor, that
legislatron will be introduced to give schemes the abihity to retrospectively obtain written actuanal confirmation
that historic benefit changes met the necessary standards
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

22. Deferred Grants and Contributions
Other Infra-
Requisi- contribu- Sewer structure
tions tions adoptions charges Total
£fm £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 july 2023 383 333 1123 1324 3163
Receved durning the year 25 09 51 23 108
Amortisation {04) {0 5) (08) (14) (31)
Balance at 30 June 2024 404 337 1166 1333 3240
Balance at 1 July 2024 404 337 116.6 133.3 324.0
Recewved during the year 4.1 46 4.4 2.5 156
Amortisation (0.3} {0 6) (0 8) {14) (3 1)
Balance at 30 June 2025 44 2 37.7 1202 1344 3365
23. Provisions
Group
Decomm- Claim Restructuring
15510NINE costs costs Total
£m £m

Balance at 1 July 2024 03 13 01 17
Provisions made during the year 01 - 08 0s
Provisions used durning the year - {0 2) {0 4) (06}
Balance at 30 June 2025 04 11 0.5 20
Current 04 11 a5 20
Balance at 30 June 2025 0.4 1.1 0.5 2.0

In the ordinary course of business, the Group 1s sometimes subject to claims and potental htigation, whether from
regulatory bodies, indwiduals or particular groups, related to one off matters The Directors consider that, where it
15 possible to be estimated reliably, a reasonable and appropriate position has been taken in reflecting such items in
these Financial Statements in the note above The prowvisions disclosed will be utihsed within 12 months of 30 June
2025

1t 1s not currently possible to estimate the financial effect and likely timing of any associated outflow of some
matters, given that some are in early stages of discussion, the limited hikelthood of the claims against the company
being successful, or the potential range of possible outcomes, and accordingly no provision has been made in the
Financial Statements No reasonably possible financial outcome that would be significant to the Financal
Statements has been identified n relation to these remamning matters at the date of the issue of these Financial

Statements
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Notes to the financial statements (cantinued)

24,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recogriused deferred tax assets and liabihties

Deferred tax assets and habiiities are attributable to the following

Liabilities Assets Net
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Property, plant and
equipment 738.1 7010 {519} {48 6) 686.2 6524
Losses - - {96.3) {72 6} {96 3) {72 6)
Employee benefits 29 15 - - 15
Provisions - - - - -
Tax (assets) / iabilitres 741.0 7025 (148.2) (121 2) 592.8 5813
Net of tax liabilities/{assets)  (148.2) (121 2) 148 2 1212 -
Net tax (assets) / habihties 592.8 5813 - - 592 8 5813

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all temporary differences giving nse to deferred tax assets
because it 15 probable that these assets wiil be recovered

Movement in deferred tax during the year

Property, plant and equipment

Losses
Employee benefits
Provisions

Movement in deferred tax during the prior year

Property, plant and equipment
Losses

Employee benefits

Prowvisions

1 July Recognised Recognised 30 June
2024 in Income in OC) 2025
£m £m £m £m
6524 338 - 686 2
(72 ) (23 7) - {96 3)
15 - 14 29
5813 101 14 592.8
1 July Recognised Recognised 30 June
2023 in income in OCl 2024
£m £m £m £m
6014 510 - 6524
(13 1) (59 5) - {72 6)
29 02 (16) 15
(04) 04 - .
5908 (79} (16) 5813
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
25, Capital and reserves

Share capital ~ Group and Company
Ordinary shares - Authorised

2025 2024
£fm Em
346,666,670 ordinary shares at £0 60 each 208 0 208 0
2080 2080

Allotted, called up and fully paid
219,585,986 ordinary shares of £0 60 each 1318 131 8
Shares classified in shareholders’ funds 1318 131 8

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to

one vote per share at meetings of the Company

Non-controlling interests
The non-controlling interests in the equity of subsidiary companies are as follows

Company Share of gams or {losses)
2025 2024
£m £m
Balance at 1 July 13 0¢
Water 2 Business Ltd 0.9 o7
EnTrade Ltd {01) -
Balance at 30 lune 21 13
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

26. Financial instruments

(a) Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value 1s the amount at which a finanoial instrument could be exchanged in an arms-length transacuon between
informed and willing parties, other than a forced or liquidation sale The fair value of short term and floating rate
borrowings approximate to book value The fair value of long-term fixed rate borrowings has been calculated using

market values or discounted cash flow techniques

The IFRS 13 fair value hrerarchy 1s a categorisation relating to the extent that the fair value can be determined by
reference to comparable market values The hierarchy ranges from level 1 where instruments are quoted on an
active market through to level 3 where the assumptions used to derive fair value do not have comparable market

data

The fair value of long-term bonds 15 classified as level 1 i the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and have a carrying value
of £3,145 4m (2024 £2,513 9m) and a fair value of £3,002 2m (2024 £2,378 9m) Bank loans are classified as level
2 and have a carrying value of £401 2m (2024 £629 3m) and fair value of £401 2m (2024 £629 3m} Loans from the
parent company are classified as level 2 and have a carrying and fair value for £3 3m (2024 £3 3m} Ali other loans

and leases are classified as level 2 and have a carrying and fair value of £13 8m (2024 £8 Bm)

It 1s the Group’s policy to recognise all the transfers into the levels and transfers out of the levels at the date of the
event or change in arcumstances that caused the transfer No habilities are classified as level 3

Set out below 1s a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values

Carrying Fair Levell Level Carrying Farr level1  Level
amount  value 2 amount  value 2
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024 2024 2024 2024
£m £m £m £m £fm £m £m £m
Financtal habilities
Interest-bearing loons and
borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings 2,1809 2,051.8 20485 33 15903 14480 14441 39
Floating rate borrowings 4150 4150 - 415.0 6375 6375 - 6375
Indexed-linked borrowings 967 8 953 8 953.8 - 9275 8348 934 8 -
Total financial irabilities 35637 34206 3,0023 4183 3,1553 30203 23789 6414

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables,
bank overdrafts and other current habihties approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term

maturities of these instruments
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Notes to the financial statements [continued)

26 Financial instruments {continued)
{b) Credit nsk
Financial risk management

Credit risk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations and anses principally from the Group’s recevables from customers and investment
securittes

Other financial assets are short term deposits with terms of more than three months The counterparties have 3
credit rating of A1+/P1 or A1/P1, and hence there 1s no material exposure to credit nisk for these values

Cash and cash equivalents are short term deposits with counterparties that have a credit rating of A1+/P1 or A1/P1,
and hence there 1s minimal exposure to credit risk for these values

2025 2024

Em £m

Other financral assets 500 -
Cash and cash equivalents 551 56
1051 5.6

The concentration of credit risk for amounts receivable from customers (see Note 17) at the balance sheet date by
geographic region was

2025 2024

£m Ern

United Kingdom 2479 2289
Netherlands 01 08
248.0 2297
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Notes to the financial statements (continved)

26. Financial instruments {continued)

Billed and unbiled recevables are from domestic and business customers N indwidual customer or industnal
sector has a material balance outstanding at either year-end

Set out below 1s the information about the credht nsk exposure on the Group’s receivables from customers using a
provision matrix

Amounts receivable from customers

2025 2024
£m £m
Billed receivables 173.8 1685
Unbilled receivables 157 4 1284
Expected credit losses (83.2} {67 2)
248.0 2297
Ageing of receivables
Gross ECL rate ECL
2025 2025 2025
£m % £m
Less than 1 year 2524 12 5% {31.7)
1 to 2 years 25.5 49.7% {12 7)
2to 3 years 198 54.7% {10.8)
3 to 4 years 158 65.5% {10 3)
Mare than 4 years 17.7 100.0% {17.7)
3312 25 1% (83 2)
Gross ECL rate ECL
2024 2024 2024
Em % £m
Less than 1 year 2188 10 1% {22 2}
1to 2 years 223 309% (6 9)
2to 3 years 190 41 1% (78)
3to 4 years 159 59 1% (9 4)
More than 4 years 209 100 0% (20 9)
2969 22 4% {67 2)
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

26. Finanaal instruments {continued}

The movement in the expected credit loss allowance in respect of amounts recevable from customers during the

year was a5 follows

2025 2024

£m £m

Balance at 1 July (67 2} {53 2)
Written off 111 96
Adjustment for non-paying customers c8 08
Non-payers subsequently becoming payers {0 9) {11)
Charge to profit and loss (27 0) {23 3)
Balance at 30 June (83.2) (67 2)

The expected credit loss policy is shown in the accounting policies (note 1)

{<} Cash flow hedges

The Group does not have any cash flow hedges (2024 none)

{d} Ligquidity risk

Financial risk management

Liquidity frisk 1s the risk that the Company wili not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due

The Company's princpal subsidiary 15 a regulated utihty with a five-year settlement with the industry regulator,
which allows 1t to plan to a certain degree of accuracy the financial obligations in the medium term The Company
has also secured long-term funding through bands 1ssued by a subsidiary company This means that the need to
obtain additional finance has been spread over future years and 1s not considered onerous In any one regulatory
period

The following are the contractual maturities of financial habilities, including estimated interest payments and
excluding the effect of netting agreements

Carrying Contractual Year 1 Years 2 Over 5 years
amount cash flows toS
2025 2025 2025 2025 2025
fm £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial
instruments
Bank overdraft 38 38 38 - -
Lease habilities 60 7.2 18 38 16
Bank [oans 397.4 470 6 1515 149 5 169 6
Other loans 7.8 93 0.6 87 -
Parent company loans 3.3 3.3 3.3 - -
Listed Bonds 3,145 4 57111 1339 9151 4,656 1
Total financial instruments 3,563 7 6,205.3 3009 10771 4,827 3
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

26. Financial instruments {continued)
Carrying Contractual Years 2 Over 5
Year 1
amount cash flows to 5 years
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
£m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial
instruments
Bank overdraft 104 104 104 - -
Lease lrabilittes 39 46 08 21 17
Bank loans 6150 7619 154 4 428 6 1829
Other loans 88 94 94 - -
Parent company loans 33 33 33 - -
Listed Bonds 2,513 9 4,623 3 825 5241 4,016 7
Total financtal (nstruments 3,155 3 54128 2568 954 8 42013
(e) Market risk
There 1s minimal exposure to equity or foreign currency risk, the interest rate risk 1s shown below
Interest rate risk
At the year end the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was
2025 2024
£m £Em
Fixed rate instruments 2,180 9 1,593 6
Floating rate instruments 415.0 6342
Index hinked instruments 967.8 927 5
3,563 7 3,155 3

The Group policy 15 to keep a significant proportion of total financial instruments in each of the three categories

Sensitivity

interest rate sensitiity

The floating rate mstruments are sensitive 10 interest rate movements If there was a 1% mcrease in interest rates
on those floating rate instruments at the balance sheet date, there would be an additional interest charge to the

income statement of £4 2m

Inflation sensitivity

Index linked bonds are sensitive to movements in the inflation rate A 1% increase in the inflation rate at the balance
sheet date would result in an additional interest charge to the income statement of £9 7m
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27 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to maximise the shareholder value

The Group manages 1ts capital structure and makes adjustments in [ight of changes In economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 1ssue new shares The Group monitors capital
using a geanng ratio for the principal subsidiary Wessex Water Services Ltd {WWSL), which 15 net debt divided by
Regulatary Capital Value (RCV} The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash
and short-term deposits, excluding discontinued operations

2025 2024 2025 2024

£m £m £m £m

Group Group WWSsL WWSL

Cash at bank (251) (5 6) {14.1) -
Short term deposits {less than 3 months) (30 0) - (30.0) -
Medium term deposits {3-6 months) {50.0) - (50 0) -
Bank overdraft 1.5 104 - 43
Bank Loans 410.8 627 1 3520 5675
Leases 60 35 53 33
Bonds 3,145 4 2,5139 3,145.4 2,513 9
Total Net Debt 3,458 6 3,149 7 3,408.6 3,0890
RCV at 30 June 4,733.2 4,331 ¢
Gearing 720% 71 3%

The RCV at March for each regulated water and sewerage company is published by Ofwat and 15 available on thew
website

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, among other things, aims to ensure that
it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowtngs that define capital structure
requirements Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in
the current period

No changes were made tn the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 30
lune 2025 and 2024
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Nates to the financoial statements (continued)

28. Commitments
Capital commitments
Group

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided at 30 June 2025 was £148 9m (2024 £218 6m)

The Group has guaranteed Bonds of £3,145 5m (2024 £2,513 9m) issued by its wholly owned subsidiary company
Wessex Water Services Finance Plc

The Group has provided performance guarantees of £1 Om (2024 £1 4m)

Made by Beneficiary Amount (Em) | Expiry date

GEMeco {SW) Ltd Bristo) City Counal 05 N/A

Wessex Water Enterpnises Ltd | Somerset County Council 01 N/A

Wessex Water Services Lid Dorset Council 04 N/A
29. Contingencies

Incident at Avonmouth Water Recycling Centre

Investigations into the incident at Avonmouth in December 2020 are ongoing We continue to co-operate with the
mvestigating authonities It 1 not possible to assess financral penalties or related costs that could be incurred as 3
result of such investigations

Flow to full treatment investigotion

In Navember 2021, Ofwat and the Environment Agency announced separate industry-wide mvestigations into Flow
to Full Treatment at waste water recychng centres Ofwat has since opened enforcement cases into all sewerage
undertakers 1n England and Wales, including the Company Ofwat has yet to publish sts findings in respect of its
investigation of the Company, though duning the year Ofwat published proposed enforcement action in respect of
five other companies, including proposed fines Three of these five companies have since reached a negotiated
settlement with Ofwat by way of an agreed undertaking in 2025 The EA continue to issue written requests for
information and have conducted a number of visits of Water Recycling Centres The Company continues to
cooperate with both organisations on theiwr investigations
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30. Significant transactions with related parties

There were no transactions with key management personne! other than the directors emoluments outlined 1n the
Directors’ report on page 34

There have been no transactions with pre-penultimate, penultrmate and ultimate holding companies described in
note 31 All other transactions with related parties and balances at the year-end are summarised in the following

table
Group Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
£m £m £m Em

Sales of goods and services.
Immediate holding company 0.6 03 0.6 03
Subsidianes - - 20 20
Fellow subsidiaries 3.2 o8 - -
Other group companies 02 02 - -
Joint ventures 1.3 14 - -
Dividend income-*
Subsidaries - - 518 780
Interest income
Immediate holding company 57 61 57 61
Subsidiaries - - 18 21
Purchase of goods and services
Subsidiaries - - 336 304
Fellow subsidiaries 06 - - -
Other group companies 0.7 07 - -
Joint ventures 149 147 - -
Year-end balances owing by
Immediate holding company 97.4 977 97.4 977
Subsidiaries - - 332 496
Other group companies 41 40 3.8 37
Joint ventures 09 08 - -
Year-end balances owing to.
Immediate holding company 23 183 5.6 183
Subsidianes - - 18.1 191
Other group companies 163 - - -

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevatl in arm’s length
transactions

85



Docusign Envelope ID 823E139A-3399-4284-A7BA-91CD7754A2AE

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

31. Ultimate parent company and parent company of larger group

The company 15 100% owned by YTL Utihties (UK) Limited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom whose
registered address 1s Wessex Water Operations Centre, Claverton Down Road, Bath, BA2 7WW

The pre-penultimate, penultimate and ultimate holding companies are YTL Corporation Berhad, Yeoh Tiong Lay &
Sons Holdings Sdn Bhd (both registered in Malaysia) and Yeoh Tiong Lay & Sons Family Holdings Ltd registered in
Jersey

The largest group in which the resuits of the Company are consolidated is that headed by YTL Corporation Berhad
tncorporated in Malaysiz The consolidated financiaf statements of these groups are available to the public and can
be obtained from Menara YTL, 205 Jatan Buke Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysta

32. Subsequent events

There were no subsequent events requining disclosure in these financial statements

33. Accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing the financial statements and applying the accounting policies, the Group is required to make reasanable
estimates and judgements based on the available information, the most significant of which are,

Significant estimates
a} Defined benefit pension scheme surplus

In recognising the surplus on the balance sheet there are a number of assumptions concerning inflation, rate of
increase of salaries and pensions, mortality rates and interest rates that can have a significant effect on the surplus
recorded These assumptions are discussed with independent qualified actuaries and disclosed i note 20 to the
financial statements The sensitivittes around these assumptions are also reflected in the note

b) Expected credit loss allowance

The expected credit loss on outstanding receivables 1S a key estimate under IFRS 9 We base our estimate of
recoverability by grouping customers into similar economic profiles and applying a percentage loss rate based on
forward looking judgements on the future collection rates that are hkely to be achieved In particufar for the year
ended 30 June 2025 this has included additional considerations of the possible impact of the ongoing ecenomic
uncertainty on the expected collection rates of outstanding recewvables at the balance sheet date These
assumptions are discussed in note 25 A 1% reduction in collection rates would increase the expected credit loss
allowance by £6 5m

¢y Revenue recognition

The unbilled income accrual from metered water services requires an estimation of the amount of unbilled charges
at the period end This s calculated based on average customer volume usage adjusted for seasonality and
regulatory price changes A 2% movement in average consumption equates to 2 £3m movement in the unkbuiiled
income accrual

d) Assetives

Assets recorded 1n the Group's fixed asset register are depreciated systematically using asset lives assigned to the
classification of the asset into a number of standard asset types These asset lives are subject to review based on
histonical performance, new technologies or new areas of capital investment A reduchion in the average asset hfe
for property, plant and equipment of 1 year would increase the depreciation charge by £10m
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33, Accounting estimates and judgements {continued)
Sigmficant judgements
e} Classification of capital expenditure

Due to the high value of capital expenditure the judgements made on the classification of expenses as operating or
capital, and within capital between mamtenance and enhancement, are key to the preparation of the accounts
These judgements are based on engineering experience of differentiating between treatment as a ‘repair’ or a
‘replacement’ of an nfrastructure asset The Group folfows both accounting standards and guidelines 1ssued by
Ofwat in making these judgements

fi  Clhimate-related matters

The Group has considered the impact of the climate change related risks to which the Group 1s exposed in the
preparation of these financial statements, including the consideration of the impact of chmate change refated risks
on management’s judgments and estimates, the carrying value of assets and their useful economic ives When
reviewing the residual values and expected useful ives of assets, the Group considers chmate-related matters, such
as chmate-related legislaton and regulations that may restnict the use of assets, requre significant capial
expenditures or change anticipated design horizons The risks are long term in nature, and whilst they wul provide a
need for investment in the future, we conclude that there 1s no matenial impact on the carrying amount of assets or
habibties recognised n the financial statements, nor do they lead to any additional key sources of estimation or
Judgement
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WESSEX WATER LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wessex Water Limited {“the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the
‘group’) for the year ended 30 June 2025 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consohdated
Statement of Comprehensive [ncome, the Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows and the related
notes 1 to 33, including material accounting policy information The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and UK adopted international Accounting Standards and as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with sectton 408 of the Companies Act 2006

In our opinien

+ the financial statements give a true and far view of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30
June 2025 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

e  the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards,

. the parent company financal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted
International Accounting Standards as apphed in accordance with section 408 of the Compames Act 2006, and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {(UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law
Our responsibitities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements i the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas:s for our opinion

Conclusions relating 10 going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements s appropniate Gur evaluation of the directors’ assessment
of the group and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included
completing the following procedures

* Gamned an understanding of the process undertaken by management to perform the going concern
assessment, incfuding discussion with management to ensure all key factors were taken into account

+ Obtaned management’s foracast cash flows and covenant calculations covering the peniod from the date
of stigning to 31 December 2026 and agreed these to the Board approved budgets and forecasts

» Inguired of management as to ther knowledge of events or conditions beyond the period of ther
assessment that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern

+ Tested the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow forecasts, as well as the calculation of the forecast
covenants

» Compared forecast future cashflows to hustorical data, ensuring vanations are in hne with our expectations,
such as historical performance, and understanding of the business and considered the reliabiity of past
farecasts
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» Challenged the Group’s ability to obtain addibional hquidity, with the support of our debt advisory
specialists and agreed available facilities to underlying agreements and the extent of drawings thereunder
to external confirmations

s  Evaluated the timing of the additional funding during the going concern period against management’s
treasury plan

» Performed forecast covenant testing and considered any indicator of breach in the assessment period

+ Considered the challenging but plausible downside scenario modelied by management in respect of the
assumptions used In the going concern assessment and included sensitivity analysis on management’s
forecast cashflows to understand how more severe the conditions would have to be to breach iquidity
and/or covenants

*  We considered the regulatory impacts on management’s assessment such as the Ofwat’s anncuncement
of the PR24 final deterrmunation and the Group’s subsequent referral of this determination to the
Campetition and Markets Authornity {CMA) PR24 cavers the peniod from April 2025 to March 2030

¢ Understood and challenged the Board's controllable mitigation plans and the forecast impact on the ability
of the business to operate within its financial covenants We obtained supporting documentation to
evaluate the plausibility and achievabihity of management’s mitigation plans considering actions delivered
to date

s  Considered the results of other audit procedures and other knowledge obtained in the audit and whether
1t was consistent with or contradicted management’s assumptions

*  Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures within the Annual Report and Accounts

Our key observations
¢ In March 2025, the Group Issued a £600 rmiilion bond

s The undrawn amount of the revolving credit facility for the Group's main trading subsidiary 1 e., Wessex
Water Services Limited, as at 31 August 2025 1s £300 million

¢ The Group has £125 million of dabt matunty payments falling due within the going concern assessment
penod

s Management’s going concern model 15 based on the PR24 final determination published by Ofwat in
December 2024, with no upside assumed from any favourable outcome following the completion of CMA
review A scenario with multiple operational, macro-economic and regulatory downsides has been
appropnately considered by management

s The Group will need to raise further funding 1n the going concern assessment period to be able to meet its
liquidity requirements and finance the capital programme over the period

s« The Directors are satisfied that the issuance of debt included within the forecasts prepared for the going
concern period 15 achievable

8ased on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainttes relating to events or
condittons that, indwidually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to
conttnue as a going concern for a perod to 31 December 2026
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Our responsibihties and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are descnbed n the
relevant secttons of this report However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as a going concern

Other information

The other information comprises the information included 1n the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report

Our opimion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
exphiaitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

Our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other mformation 15
matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be matertally misstated 1If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives nise to 2 material musstatement i the financial
statements themselves If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a matenal misstatement
of the other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to reportin this regacd

Opinions on other matters prescrnibed by the Compantes Act 2006

in our opinien, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

o the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

s thestrategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the tight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified matenal misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Comparnies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you If, In our opinton

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been recewved from branches not visited by us, or
the parent company financial statements are not i agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibihties of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 40, the directors are responstble
for the preparation of the financral statements and for being satsfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the directors determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
tompany’'s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as apphcable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors erther intend to liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operations, ar have no reahstic alternative but to do so
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenial misstatement when it exists Misstatements can anise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, (ndividually or in the aggregate, they coutd reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decistons of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregulorities, including froud

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations We design procedures in
ltne with our responstbilittes, outhined above, to detect irregulanties, including fraud The rnisk of not detecting a
material misstatement due to fraud 1s higher than the rnisk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentsonal misrepresentations, or through collusion The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 1s detailed below However,
the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance
of the entity and management

*  We obtaned an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and
determined that the most significant are

UK adopted international accounting standards
Financial Reporting Councit (FRC)

Tax Legislation (Governed by HM Revenue and Customs)
General Data Protection Regulation

The UK Bribery Act

Anti-Money Laundenng Legislation

Health & Safety Legislation

Ofwat Regulations

The Water Act {2003, 2014)

Enviranment Act {1995; 2021}

Companies Act 2006

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 O

+  Weunderstood how Wessex Water Lirmted 1s complying with those frameworks by enquiring with management
to understand how the company maintain and communicate 1ts policies and procedures in relatton to these
areas We evaluated the entity level control environment through discussion with management and in-house
legal counsel and inspecting and observing the control environment

= We assessed the susceptibility of the Group and Company’s financial statements to matenal misstatement,
including how fraud might occur by meeting with management and internal audit to understand where they
are considered there was susceptibility to fraud We also constdered performance targets and the potential
incentives or opportumities to manage earnings We considered the programmes and controls that the Group
and the Company has established to address the risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect
fraud, and how senior management monitors those programs and controls Where the rnisk was considered to
be higher, we performed audit procedures to address each identified fraud nsk These procedures included
testing manual Journals and were designed to provide reasanable assurance that the financial statements were
free from matenal fraud

+  Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to dentify noncompliance with such laws and
regulations Our procedures involved making enquirtes of key management and in-house legal counsel,
reviewing key policies, inspecting legal registers and correspondence of non-compliance from the refevant
authorities and reports from any external legal teams, and reading board meeting minutes We performed
Journal entry testing to ensure that there are no unusual legal or penalty expenses incurred during the year that
haven’'t been disclosed and to ensure that the management 15 in comphance with the apphcable framework
For any non-compliance noted, we assessed the accounting implications and read the financial statemeats to
evaluate the appropnateness of the disclosures
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A further description of qur respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements 1s lacated on the
Financral Reporting Council’'s website at https //www frc org uk/auditorsresponsibilities  This description forms part
of our audrtor's report

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as 2 body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for cur audit woerk, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

e g SN LV R e

3 auditor}

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Bristol

19 September 2025
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